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- Greater Allentic Bank o -
Established 1886~ - . ‘

[

/
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Missiom Statement - . \

4

“Greater Atlantic Bank is a strohg local community bank embarking on its'second century of -
service to the public. With a remarkable vision for the future and a keen understanding and ~
appreciation of the past, Greater Atlantic possesses a dynamic strategy for ¢ servmg customers and
competmg successfully in today s busmess envnronmem 7 Lo
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The ha.llmark of our business phﬂosophy is what we refer/to as our prmcnples of recognmon and.
they serve us effectively every-day. They dre as follows: S

o -Recognize the need to serve our customers ina friendly,, courteous andl professional manner . . . _

o Recogmze our civic respon51b111ty by part1c1pat1ng in and supportmg progra.ms that enhance
_the quahty of hfe in the communities we serve . . /

7

o Recognlze our obhgaﬂon to our employees to prowde a plea.sam and efﬁment environment in
. which to work and thereby enhance thenr efforts on behalf of our customers

AN

o Recdgnize the need to co’nstantly evaluate ‘q.nd i'mprové the produCts and ser‘yices we provide .. .-

T N

o Recognize the intrinsic values of having our branch ofﬁ&:es*ﬁcake on the personalities of the
- neighborhoods they serve rather than having a corporate and impersonal presence . . . -

./ b | \ - i C T A -/
o . Recognize our commitment to peak financial performance . ... _ - :

. L N N
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‘And finally, I o C A

o Recognize all of our customers.
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 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS ) . ‘ N
B (Dollars-in thousands, except per share data) - .
) : , ‘ < g . )
At or for ﬁscal year ended September 30, ! - 2001-. ‘ %OOQ o .
c o L ‘ / NS (dollars in thousands) )
RS - N ,»\\ ) - X - = B .- N 0y ; = _ 7z _'
‘Net interest income - . - N - . - 86,376 $4,678 - - . -
Net (loss) income. = SO, (522) - (3,638)
- A N s ) ) ) T T - s ‘.. ) A
Per common Share . o . 0L - a
. - - - - - B >~
Net (loss) earnings_ - N o $Q.L7) 7 $@2D
" Book valueatyearend A - 694 . _
- ; _— . ; T = - . ~ - La ;
_ At September 30 - S o0 - - ;
‘ * Total Assets , ! S N $370,604. $296,296
: . T . i ' ) - s o s \: ’ - :/
Loans receivable, net . o o .. 164,603 132,698
| g o AR L - R ’ S - ~ -
“Deposits . . S 229,982 - 188,387 o
. . ; N / - A o P oo “~
<~ ' Stockholders’ equity. = . L0 o 21,480 20,867~ _
N ~ Non-performing assets - o 506 . - 366
; N 'Fihanc‘ial Ratics =~ . o ~ N o= \ | o
R -t : o S e LY ~
Return on average assets _ o R L (0.15)% - (1.45)%.
Return on average equity _ . ‘ o0 i ‘(2.48)"‘/,, ‘ - (15.12)_.
o 13 o e, s oL s 7 - :
.. 7, Net interest margin S o ; 1.94 193 - . .~
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Message (o sﬁmmh@ﬂd@n‘s < S

-We are plleasedl to report on the performance of Greater Atlantic JFmancnaJl ‘Corp. for. ﬁsca]l year

2001." While we did hot achieve proﬁmbﬂlny in 2001 until the fourth quarter, Greater Atlantic Bank has-
continued its successful growth pattern, es&abhs]lumg a significant ‘base for future profitable years. That is

‘ \ reflected in our et earnings for the December 2001 quarter when the Bank reportedl net eammgs of
’ i $271, 0@@ or $.09 per share. - ) S - - _

Jln fiscal 200@ the combmauon of a substantm]l pomfoho of fixed-interest rate assets and rising

" interest rates compressed the Bank’s met interest margin. In-fiscal 2001, the Federal Reserve cut short-

. -term interest rates 3 ¥2 percent by September 30, the end of our fiscal year. As a result of a restructuring
~ - of the mvestﬁmem portfolio, toward more flexible-rate msmnmems in fiscal 2000 and strong loan and *
deposit gromh in fiscal 2001, the Bank’s net mterest margm was re]lattnve}ly msensmve to the decllme in
", interest rates during fiscal 2001.

(

~ 7

N - Creater Atlantic Momgage Corpommon (GAMO), tche Bank’s mongage -banking subsidiary, using
, ~its mam business line, FHA streamline refinancings, was dble to take advantage of the falling interest rate
N ‘ emvnronment Loans orngnnated and sold by GAMC more ‘than doubled dlwrmg the year producing a 76%
\  increase in gain on sale of loans, from $2.5 million in fiscal 2000 to $4.3 million in fiscal 2001. As
_interest rates rise, FHA originations will likely decline. GAMC has anticipated this ‘market trendl and wﬂl
be diversifying m&o new lines of business that" are less’ interest-rate sensitive. . Sy

S~ Withi.a fu]l]l yeanf of activity ‘Trealized from the acquisition .of Dominion Savmgs Bank at the end of
fiscal 2000, the Bank significantly increased service fees on loans and deposits. The acquisition of ‘

-~ . Dominion alsc proved to be beneficial in helping the Bank increase its deposits. Deposnts related to the

- Dominion branches grew from $40 million at the end of fiscal year 2000 to $63 mrmllhon at the close of the

: cumrem fiscal year, an increase in excess‘of 57% i | ,’ . .
‘Total assets for the company mcreased 16 $371 mﬂlhon at yeaur end 2001 from $296 million at the
. end of the prior year, a 25% increase.. Total loans increased” from $133 mﬂhon at year-end 2000 to $165 -
million at year-end 2001, a 24% increase. Total deposnts grew at the'same. time from $188. million to
$230 million, a 22% i increase and borrowings increased to $118 million at year-end from-$83 million the
pnor year, a 42% increase. The growth in loans ard deposits were re]lar[ed to the acquisition of Dommon

and the Bamk’s mtemall and external marketmg activities. - S N

, PN
~

. ]Dummg ﬁsca]l 20@]1 we were able to introduce adldmnona]l services for our customers, mc]ludlmg
- internet bankmg to provide for bill paying; money transfers between accounts and account research from
the convenience of home, an overdraft line of credit, and a debit card. -We also improved: our voice
response system, adding the capability to transfer finds between accounts. For comimercial customers we
provxdedl zero balance accounts and a lock-box arrangement to help them manage their business resources

) more effectweﬂy “The successful completion of each of those actions ‘'was due to carefuﬂ p]lannmg and a.

. strongteameffort on the part oftthe Bank'ssteff. ~ ° o - -~ o

v \

“In fiscal 2002 we will commue to grow the Ban}k and look forwardl to puttmg addmnona]l customer
services into place, including check imaging. That will allow our custemers.to be able to orgamze their
financial records better. In addition, the data base that we can build through digital check imaging will
glve us an opportunity to offer useful new targeted products and services in the future. In order to help

- our commercial customers manage their business resources more effectively, we are dleve]lopmg a,

sophnstncated internet cash managemem system with ACH ongmatnon capabilities. . R
- P i A - - i Yy
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Whn]le we expect to continue to expenence sngmﬁcam growth in our assets through adldlmona]l
investments in securities and single-family loans, we intend tc focus on expanding our commercial
lending activities. To increase our volume of commercial lending, in November, 2001, we hired an
experienced commercial loan officer and charged him with the responsibility-for further developing the .
commercial lending policy and increasing the volume of commercial loans. He joins our team.of
experiericed loan officers who will maintain our growth in Ehe areas of multifamily, cons&mcfnnon (

commercial real estate andl consumer ﬂoans o T s .

-While we expandl ouir loan ponfoho, we wnM not do so at the expense of loan quahty We
 continue to maintain strong asset quality ratics, with non—perfommng assets amounting to only 0.14
percent of total assets. Given the recent rise in loans delinquent 30 dlays or more and the current economic
envnronment we will be i mcreasmg our provision for loan losses.. - g

This year we will undemake a rights offering to increase our. capmaﬂ The offerrmg of convertible
trust ]prefelnred shares will ensure that we remain a well-capitalized bank as our assets grow. Given the
current size and expense structure of the bank, growth allows the bank to reap economies of scale. Thus,-
not only will the new offering expand our long-run -opportunities; it will also result in an immediate
increase in Bank profitability, which-we expect will boost our eammgs per share. Purchasers of the new
issue will enjoy an immediate return on their additional investments in the Bank and, through the
convertibility feature, will be in a position to reap the benefits from the appreciation in value of the
Bank’s common stock. By structuring the offering as a convertible rights offering, rather than as a public’
offering of common stock, the Bank avoided a substantial undlerwmmg fee, and gave existing .
~ shareholders the opportunity to maintain their stake in anticipated future gams in proﬁmbﬂnty

In ]preparmg for fiscal year 2002 and the expected 1 rresumpnom of economic activity, we are takmg
several proactive measures. To protect the Bank’s profits, and the shareholders’ equity value, from
falling in the face of rising interest rates, we will hedge our on-balance sheet interest rate risk exposure
witha combination of interest rate swap and cap agreements. We will also continue to place shorter- -term,
more: interest rate sensitive assets on our balance sheet to take advamage of the opportunities that become
available in a rising interest rate envmonmem ’

On behalf of all of those who make up the Greater Atlantic team, our emp]loyees sharehoﬂders
~ and custormers, we express our thanks as we pledge our best efforts in the year aheadl Yowr support is
deeply apprecnatedl and we welcome your comments and suggestions.

’

Ao Gt é%m :

Charles W. Calomiris * -- ” s Carroll E. Amos
Chairman of the Board ~ o C President and ‘

S . ‘ T o WL Chief Executive Officer
- p) N
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Greater Atlantic ananczal Corp. and. Subszdzanes o . ST e
SEMECTED CONSOLIDATED MNAN@CHA}L AND @TH}ER DATA" o ( o

You should read the foMowmg Selected Consohdated anancm]l Data.in con]uncnon with our

~ Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto, the information contained in "Managément’s ;
. Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operatﬂons" .and, other ﬁnan01a1

~ 3007434 3,007.434
s !

‘information mc]luded e]lsewhere in this Annual ]Repom < i
. N Ve .

At or For gmie Yeairs Ended Sepaembeu' 3, - © 2001 - 2000

: / : T ;- V/ - - (dollars in thousands)

C@msohdlamedl Sﬁaftememﬁs of @pem@wm Daﬁa A o L -

- Interest income....... {.‘ ........... feveri et et asi e ennenas et et e 7 $23,623 T $17,772 °
Interest: expense ....... T f:.’...' ...... \ ......... SRR AR 17,247 13,094
Netmterestmcome ..... N — S R ............ ~T 6376 4,678

. ]Provmon for loan 1OSSES.c.veviavrrenenrens e '...‘.'./ ............ v - 55 13

o Net mterest mcome after provmmn for loan Tosses....... e { ........ - ‘6_,32_1 4,665
v Nonmterest mcome...........,._.....,.’ ..... et e reenes e e T wend ~ 75,707 2,054

" NORINCEESt EXPENSE ... 2 rvveserresioeerereseereernecrsessessissaass ferisvererestesnerinnns e o7 12,550 16,957
Loss before taxes....v...veorrrnnee bevreennes SO TS S 7 I C Y X 1))
TOCOME (AR DEERL ..ol beitossesesnssssosonee = [(600)
NELICOME. .o oo oo oo resssenonse 8 (522) -~ $3,638)

Peg' Share Data: ' TS ' | f‘, o ‘\ 3 o ‘

" Net income: ’ e R ) P . o .

" BASIC e e e eeerespenseee 8017 s s(2n

_ Diluted.......orveeen freee e e e pen e et ~ Lo U8@AT) v sy

' Book value................. SR WO e OO OO ORREY A S 694
Tangible book Value ...................: S e e ) 680 694
Weighted average shares outstanding: - e, b o

I S T 3,007,434 . 3,007,434

- Consolidated Smtememts oﬁ‘ Financial C@ndm@m Data: .~ A
Total assets ........... et e S - - $370,604  $296,296
 Total 10anS TECEIVable, Nt ....ivrvrposervesveesersbince i e e beeeenf T 164,663 T132,698 -
/ Allowance for loan losses ...... \.‘.:;..'..‘..ﬁ.\. ...... el L \ 810 1765 N
' .Mortgage-loans held for sale...‘.;/....,,.,.f.;'....‘...‘ ..... SRS TR SRS ooy 14,683 5,599
. TveStment SECUrities (1) covvvrrmsmnveesiersyonresifiernssne eeeees et 131302 70,777
- MOrtgage-backed SECUTIES ..o, Tuvererssrrerssveresseseisseitecois nmrnsec oot 39,1187 66,169
Total dePOSItS ..o R et 229,982 - 188,387
- FHLB advances.............. ETUTRT SOOI SR Greserense st - 74,500, ™ 46,100
© OhRr BOMTOWINES v 551mmres s sttt ot e - 43323 % 36,736
Total stockholders’ equity............ ’ ........ TR v dpesenes - 2L180 20,867 ]
" Tangible capital..........c..cooerers eeroeees e e S 20365 . 20295 °
- ‘ ' N N o ’ \ . . .
oo N A . ’ 7 ~
i Y s B o - ’ h
‘ L B 5 . ~ 7 .
) - . NIV . P ’
. . N L
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Greater Atlantic Financial Corp. and Subszdzanes g P

SIEMEC’H‘IED C@NS@JLHDATE]D FINANCIAL AND @'H‘HER }DATA («:@mlfmmmdl) .

At or For the Years Emaﬂe«ﬂ Sep&emmbcer 33@ R ) 2001 2000

S (dollars'in thousands)

Avemge C@msoﬂncdlmedl Sttmemmemﬂs @ﬁ‘ anamcnaﬂ (C@zmaﬂn&u@rm Data . L '

Total ASSELS .oovvevereerreerret oo SOV N ORI e et e, . $343, 226 o $251,417

" Investment secumies(l) ....................... e R ..................... . 118, 320 ‘ 75,808
Mortgage-backed Securities(1).................cc.. Sreerepeneensessensesislresnes s 46,225 © 59,489

" TOLE I0BIS srvvvvveercesseernesressssegaionegseesseineones Sethetosenensesssisssessinesneenn | 164,780 106,917
Allowance for 10an I0SSES ........c.v.... SO SO (860)- (599)
Total depOSits.........ovv..vvennn., e e 207,657 137,272
Total StocKROIAErS” QUILY ...... vueveereeivmersereieisiceienereegaensienens eerenrenes S 21,045 24,067 °

\ ‘ : o ¥ ~ ’ C , ‘ ‘\ ‘(

Performance Ratios @) ) - , ;

" Return on averag}j asSets ivvveerinnnne ettt r e r e rrreane ek LR L (0.15)% (1.45)%
Retum On average equity.........c.ceeuine PPN TR TS ; (2.48)- (15.12):

, Equnty to assets“ ......... s ST ' 6.13 9.57
Net interest margin:............... rreversirnenens Mevreerereenrenes o i JSUETRRT 194 1.93:
]Efﬁcnencymtm@) et e ettt et 103.86 . 162,76

Asset Quﬂaﬂn&y Data: L T o N
* Non-performing assets tc total assets, at period end .....ooovieenne RRUROR 0.14 - 012
Non-performing loans tc total loauns alt period endl....~..\...............\...'.'....‘: ...... . ,0.29 014
Net charge-offs to average total loans e Cverasenegmost et s ses st s taesees ) 0.07 0.06
Allowance for 10an I0SSEs t0: .......cceeuererieiminnis e )

Total loans............. SRR et e e - 0.46% 0.54%
Non-performing loans .................. e reereinessssasiassenss O 160.08 ~394.33
Non-performing 16ans .................... Lrrrerrsrnrannne e S ‘ $506 $194
Non-pérformng ASSEAS -eoercirrriis e e ines C 7506 " 366
Aliowance for Bdahyllosses...............:...:,....f .................. e erereee et ' 810 765

B 5 i - . ’

Capital Rattos of the Bank: ‘ ) o ~
Leverage 1atio . .....ou.vverererverunnen. ettt 5.51% Y 6.85%
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratm TP — s 1094 13.71
’Jl"omll nsk-lbased capital rano..........;...,.j.......\i ....... e R et es 11.36 . 1423

(1) Consists of securities classified as available-for-sale, held- to—matumy and for trading. = -

(2) Ratios are presented on an annualized basis where appropriate. ,

3 Efficiency ratio consists of noninterest expense dx‘wded by net mterest incg]fne and nomn’te:re‘st\ income.

- -~ ’ /
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Manageenrge Discussion znd Analysis. - A S SR S
: E’orward Loo]knng Stlattemenﬁts o - - - : ~ .

‘When used in this report and in future filings by the company with rhe Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”), in the company’s press releases™ or other public or shareholder communications;
and in oral statements made with the approvaJl of an anrhorrzed executive officer, the words or phrases “will
likely result,” “are expected to,” “will continue,” “is anticipated,” “esnmare,” “pro]ecr or similar
expréssions are intended to identify “forward-]lookmg statements” within the meaning of the Private X

Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such statements are subject to cerftam risks and uncertainties, .
_including, among other things, c]nanges in economic condnrons in the company s‘market, area, changes in

policies by regulatory agencies, fluctizations in interest rates, demand for loans in the company s market
-area and competition, that could cause actual results to differ matterra]l]ly from Itnsrorrca]] earnings and those
presently anncrpared or proyecred "The company wishes to advise readers that the factors listed above could
affect the company’s financial performance and could cause the company’s actual results for future periods

. to differ materially from any opinions or srarements expressed withTespect: to future penods in any current
.Statements. - ¥

- - BN
N

The’ ‘company does not nnderftake and specifically dec]lmes any ob]lrganon to publicly release rhe )
‘result of any revisions which may be made to any forward-looking statements 1o ‘reflect events or
‘circumstances after the date of snch stcatemenrs or to reﬂect dne occurrence olf anncrpated or- nnanncrpared
evenrs / . . S N ; )
~ ) TN - : o ~ !

-~
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‘Generaﬂ - - ‘ - v N

~ The proﬁrabdny of the Company, and more: specrﬁcaMy, the proﬁrabrhry of ns prnnary snbsrdrary
Greater Ar]lannc Bank, depends pnmanﬂy on its met interest income. Net interest income is the difference |
between the interest income it earns-on its loans and investment portfolio, and the interest it pays on_~"
rnfceresr-bearrng Ilrabdnnes which consists mam}ly of interest paid on deposns and borrowmgs

. The Company s profitability is also’ affecred by the level of its non-interést income and operanng
expenses. Non-interest income consists prnnardy/of gains on sales of leans and available-for-sale * - y
investments, service charge fees and commissions earned by non-bank subsidiaries. @peraftmg expenses
consist primarily of salaries and emp]loyee\beneﬁrs, occnpancy-re]lared expenses, equipment and _
technology-related expenses and other genera]l operanng EXpenses. c “ -

v~ ~.The operanons of the Bank and bankmg msntcnnons in general, are srgnrﬁcandy mﬂnenced by

genera]l economic conditions and related monetary and fiscal policies-of regn]lafnory agencies. Deposn flows > , '

and the cost of depdsits and borrowings are influenced by interest rates on competing investments and’
general market rates-of interest. Lending activities-are affected by the demand for financing real estate and
, other types of loans, which in turn are affected by the interest rates at W]nrch such ﬁnancmg may be offered

4 andwofrher factors aﬁfecnng }Ioan demand and the avadabdny of funds. - Loy Al

A
Ka . y i
. i E

de}vaompared 02000 . - o ,

Net Income: For the ﬁscaIl year ended September 30 2001, the company incurred a loss of ,

- $522,000 or $0.17 per share compared to a loss of $3.6 million or $1.21 per share for fiscal year 2000..
The $3.1 million decrease in net loss over the comparab]le penod one year.ago was pnmarr]ly due to
increases in met interest income and noninterest income. Those i mcreases exceeded an increase. in -
noninterest expense and a decrease in the bank’s income tax benefit. The bank believes that due to
continuing operating losses it is-more appropnare not to recognize an.income tax benefit for current
- period operating losses, and that pre- tax earnings or loss provide a better basis to compare “period to
- pericd operations. Viewed from that perspective, the bank’s pre-tax loss improved by $3.7 million from a -

, loss of $4.2 nn]l]lron for the ﬁsca]l year ended 2000 to a. ﬂoss of $522 000 for the current year. The - . :

~
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/ reduction in interest rates, coupled with the continued growth of the baumk have led to an nmprrovemem in
both net interest income and noninterest mcome S } B » ( -

Net Interest Income. An important source of our earnings is net interest income, which is the
difference between income earned on interest-earning assets, such as loans, investment securities and

" mortgage-backed securities, and interest paid on interest-bearing sources of funds such as deposits and

borrowings. The level of net interest income is determined primarily by the relative average balances of -
interest-earning assets and interest- Ibeanng liabilities in combination with the yields earned and rates pauld
‘upon them. The correlation between the repmcmg of mtelresm rates on assets and on habn]lnues allso \
mﬂuences net interest income. - o .

The following table presents a companson of the components of interest income and expense and
net interest income.

e < i B . N

- by a 17 basis point decrease in the avemge yield emed on the Toan and investment pomfohos

. . Difference
Years ended September 30, - 2001 2000 "~ Amount %
Ly, \ o (dollars in thousands)
Interest income: o, S S ,
Loans $ 12/658 $ 8,462 - - $ 4,196 '49.59%
Investments T 10,965 ~ 9,310 - 1,655 . 17.78
Total - ) 23,623 . 17,772 .5,851 32.92 v
Interest expense: ’ ’ ) RS Co
~ Déposits‘ - 11,629 7,668 - 3,961 51.66
-« Borrowings 5,618 5,426 192 3.54
_ Total - ‘ i 17,247 113,094 4,153 31.72
Net imerest incomé . $ 6,376 $ 4,678 $ 11,698 36.30% .

N

QOur growmh in net mteresm income for fiscal yeaur 2001 was due pnman]ly to the i mcrease in average
interest-earning assets resulting from our planned growth. Average interest-earning assets increased $87.1. - -
million or 35.97% over the compamblle period one-year ago coupled with a one basis point increase in net
interest margin (net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets). The increase in net interest
margin resulted from the decrease on rates paid for interest bearing liabilities exceedmg the decrease in yields
earned on interest earning assets by 14 basis points. That decrease was offset by an increase in average mterest-

bearing ]lnabxllmes exceeding the i increase in average interest-earning assets by $474,000. -
Ve

Interest Income. Interest income for the fiscal year ended Septtember 30, 2001 mcreasedl $5 9
million from fiscal year 2000 primarily as a result of an increase in the average outstanding balances in
loans and investment securities. The increase in interest income from the loan portfolio for fiscal year.
2001 compared to interest income earned for fiscal 2000 resulted from an increase of $57.9 million in the
average balance of loans outstanding. That increase was coupled with an increase of $29.2 million in the
average outstanding balance in the investment and mortgage-backed securities portfolios and was offset

Interest Expense. The $4.2 million increase in interest expense on deposits and bomrowedl funds for
fiscal year 2001 compared to fiscal year 2000 was pmncnpaﬂy the result of a significant increase in the average
outstanding balances in total deposnms and borrowed funds, and was offset by a 31 basis pomt decrease in the -
average cost of funds. The increase in interest expense on'deposits was primarily due to an increase in average -
certificates of deposit and NOW and money market accounts. of $67.8 million, or 49.97%; from $135.7 million
for fiscal 2000 to $203.6 million for fiscal 2001." The average rate we paid for deposnts increased from 5.59% .

for fiscal 2000 to 5.60% for fiscal 2001. ‘That i increase in Tate was coupled with an increase of $70.4 million in
the 4 average outstanding balance of deposits. The i increase in interest expense on borrowings was primarily due
to an increase in average bomrowmgs of $17.2 nullhon, and was oﬁfset in pan by an 85 basis pomt decline in the
average cost of funds o : : P
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Compamtzve Avemge Balances and Im’erest Income Analyszs ']I'he fo]l]lowmg table p)resems the tota]l
dollar amount of interest income from average interest-earning assets and the resultant yields, as well as the -
interest expemse ‘on average nmerest-bearmg halbnhtnes, expressed both in dollars and anmualized rates. No-

- 'tax-equnvallent adjustments were made and aM avemge baﬂances/ are.average dlan]ly ba}lances Non accmmg -
]loans have beenr mc]ludled in the mb]les as loarss camrymg a zero yneﬂd

’

N L R Ce
. / R - s .. Forthe Yealrs Ended Sep&embelr 36,
' BN ‘ ‘ 2001 2000
NN S - SN . ‘ Interest ~ - L N .7 Interest Average
=~ - ‘ N t , Average - Income/ . Average - Average, :‘/]Im@me/ ‘o r,\,YieHd]I
e T S .. __Balanc®’ _ Expense.  Yield/Rate _ Balance - Expense Rate
(A§S®¢S§ A ‘ ‘ , o ’ ﬁ'v (dollars in thousands) \ ‘
Interest- ea.ming assets: . L . ‘

. Realestate loans- - 8124646 $9298 T 7.46% '$ 87468 S 6,699 7.66%
Consumerloans 729,106 - 2,287, 786 13,9801 1,236 8.84 -
_.. Commercial business loans  ~~" 11,038 1,073 . 972 .-~ 5469 521 - _ " 9.64 -

Total loans = 164,790. 12,658 - 7.68 106 917 8,462 791 .
Investment-securities - ‘ S 118320 - 7897 - 667 75, 808 5,380 7.10
Mortgage-backed securities ~ .- 46,225 3,068 664 59,489, % . 3,930°° 6.61 "

- Total interest-earning assets T329335 23623 - 7.47 242214 - 17,772 7.34,
) Non-eammg assets - o 13,891 > . O - - 9203 \ L L
Totalassets . ; . $343.226 T, ssaT ST
k . BN N v /‘v o ;;‘ . - . . - VAN N )
Lisbilities and Stockholders’ 1 L AR A , ‘- o
Equity: S . . : o . ~
]Intercst-beanngllablhtxes ~ ‘ ” \ e S C ~ o - Tl
" i Savings.accounts . - . +$ 4,089 136 333 8 1,532 . T 40 - 2.61 -
' Now and money market accounts _ .. 59,783 . 2,744 . 7 445 - 34,882 1,772 . 5.08
Certificates of deposit, ~ ~ T 143,785 8749 _ 608 - 100858 5856 581
Total deposits .~ /- o, 207657 - 1L629 ~ 560 . 137272 7,668\ 5.59
EHLB advances - o o 160,784 3,396 . 559 - 55691 .. « 3,419 6.14 _
_Other borrowings |~ ~ 43,217 ‘2,222 ¢ 514 .. 31,100 2,007 L - 645
| Total interest-bearing lidbilities - 5 _ 311,658 __17.247 553 224063 13,094 . 5:84
’ Noninterest-bearing liabilities: / ) \x' ) ‘ . o § . T s /\
Nomnterest -bearing demand deposxts .8,767 S0 , 1,916 A A
Other liabilities - » - ST~ 01,756 ‘ o <13 -
© Total liabilities ~ < 322,181 ~ © 227,350
- Stockholders’ eqmty 21,045 . U 24,067 -
_Total liabilities and stockholders equlty ' $343,226 * S . < $251.417 ~ P
Net interest mcome o | $ 6,375 L o ‘ $ 4678 .. ,
]Interest rate spread . o~ Ty 1.64%- N . 1.50%
. Net interest margin o e 1.94% o 1.93%
, N " j g P N ' -,
/ ( . ' ’ |
~ / - e C ) / )'/’ ‘ / -
- ‘ ‘ A
/ [ 4 g _ N : 2 ~ \;_ -
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Rate/Volwme Analysis. The foﬂﬂowmg table presents certain information regaxrdmg changes in’
interest income and interest expense attributable to changes in interest rates and changes-in volume of
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities for the periods indicated. The change in interest
attributable to both rate and volume has\ been allocated to the changes in rate an\mdl volume on a pro rata basis.

SR . Years Ended September 30, 2001 v. 2000
U ' ' - Change Attributable to ~
| - ¢ __Volume Rate " Total ’
) ~ R (in thousands)
Real estate loans ’ $2,847 $ (248) $2,599
- Consuimer loans 1,337 N (280). 1,051 .
Commercial business loans 537 -9 " 546
~ -Total loans . 4,721 (525) " 4,196 ,
Investments : 3,017 - (500) 2,517 )
Mortgage-backed securities ~ _(876) 4 (862)"
Total )interest-eaming assets $6,862 $(1,011) $5,851
Savings accounts . "$ 67 - $ 297 $ 96
Now and money market accqums , 1,265 (293) 972 R
Certificates of deposn 2,492 /401 2,893 '
Total deposits N 3,824 137 3,961
FHLB advances I 313 (336) (23)
. Other borrowings e 782 (567) 215
Total interest-bearing habﬂiti\ejs\’ $4,919 $ (766) $4,153
Change in net interest income - - $1,943 $-(245) . $1,698 o

vazswn Jor Loan Losses. The a]l]lowance for lloan losses, w]hulch is established through

. provisions for losses charged to expense, is increased by recoveries on loans previcusly charged off and is
-~ reduced by charge-offs on loans. De(temmnmg the proper reserve level or allowance involves
managemem s judgment based upon a review of factors, mc]ludlmg the company s internal review process
which segments the loan portfolio into grroups based on various risk factors mc]ludmg the ttypes of loans
and asset classifications. Each segment is then assigned a reserve percentage based upon the perceived
risk in that segment. Although management utilizes its best judlgmem in pmvndlmg for probable 19sses,
there can be no assurance that the company will nct have (o' increase its provisions for loan losses in the
future as a result of an adverse market for real estaie and economic conditions genem]l]ly in the company’s
*primary market area, future increases in non-performing assets or for other reasons whnch would’
' adversely affect the company s results of operations.

The increase in non- performing loans of $312,000 during ﬁscaﬂ 2001, resulted pnmamﬂly from the

' $196,000 increase in single family loans and 4 $122,000 increase in non-performing construction loans.

The provisicn for loan losses was increased from $13,000 during fiscal 2000 to $55,000 during fiscal
"*2001. The increase in provision is directly related to the increase in non-performing loans. Net charge-
offs increased from $63,000 dlwrmg fiscal 2000 to $110,000 during fiscal 2001 as management took a
more aggressnve posture in assessing collectibility of classified loans. Management expects charge -offs
to'increase in the future as a result of the increase in its total loan portfolic during fiscal 2001, While we
have continued our loan loss provisions in response to our continued growth in real estate loans, we have
~ allowed our allowance for loan losses to decline as a percentage of loans due to the continuation of the
- low percentages of our charge-offs amdl non- perfonmng loans. .

.- Noninterest income. Noninterest income increased $3.7 mn]lhom during ﬁscadl 20@1 over the
comparable period one year ago, primarily as a result of the increase in gain on sale of loans, reflecting an-
increased volume of loan ongmatmons and sales from the company’s moﬁgage bam]‘ﬂng activities. That -
increase was coupled with an increase in gams on the sale of investments and an increase in service fees
- on loans and deposnts That increase in gain on sales of i mvestmem secumnes occurred as a result of a loss |
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, cnf $1.0 million recogmzed dunmg ﬁscaﬂ 2000 When the bank transferred $22, 8 mﬂhon in securities from
available for sale to itmdmg resulting in a loss of $580,000, with the remaining $420,000 of loss oh sale ~
resulting from sales of $18.0 million in securities as the bank restructured its investment securities -
pomfoho, with no comparable loss occurring dunng fiscal 2001. The increase in service fees on loans and v
deposnts relates primarily to the bank’s acquisition of Dominion Savings Bank, with a full year of activity . -

W bemg realized, and increased loan producfmon at Greater Atlantic Mortgage. The significant level of gains -
on sale of loans in fiscal 2001 resulted from the company. takinig adl\//amage of loan origination volumes -
coup]ledl with home loan reﬂnancmg and a favorable interest rate environment. whxch enabled the company
. to sell at a gain ]108131’115 through Greater At]lamnc Moﬁgage T < ,
Dumng the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001, loan disbursements originated for sale”- - s
. amounted to $249.9 million compared to $117.0 miliion during the comparable period one year ago. The ~
A © $132.9'million ‘increase in loans originated and disbursed was largely attributable to decreases in market
interest rates, which increaséd home mortgage refiniancings. During the pemodl substantially all loans L
ongmatted were sold in the secondary market, in most cases with serrvncmg released. Proceeds fromthe .

./

sale of loans for fiscal 2001 amounted to $245.2 million compared t0 $121.3 million during the' . > .~
- . comparable period one year ago. Sales of loans resuhedl in gams of $4.3 million and $2:5 million for -
o fiscal 2001 amd fiscal 2000, respectnve)ly = o U
I The fo]l}lowmg tabﬂe presénts a compamsom of the comonents o]f non-interest mcome
B N - o Yealrs Emded Sep&embeu- 30, N Duﬁ'ﬁ'em‘eme Y ‘ B
L o o o 2001 2000 Amount™ - - % /
’, e >l T . E NN >~ (dollars in thousands). - )
- ,  Noninterest income: | A ‘ K B , . }
. ‘Gain on sale of loans ., . . - | .- $4335 . $2466 ( . $1,869 T 757%%. , _
¢ Service fees onloans ' 673 . 464, - 209 .« - 4504- .
< Service fees on deposits . -/ 4567 _ o177 e s 157.63 -
. Gain (loss) on sale of i investment secuxmes ;- 194 (1,025) .., 1L,219 * 118.93.
_ " ‘Gain on sale of real estate owned - ' , 45 RS U =31, 22143 T
~ _ Other operating mcome o 4 (42 ~__ ~ 46 . " 109.52
. o~ - Total nomnterest mcome B $ 5,707‘ $ 2,@54 . 83653 - 171.85%

\
Noninterest expense. Noninterest expense for fiscal 200]1 amoumed to $]l2 6 mﬂlhon an mcrease of k
$1.6 million or-14.54% from the $11. 0 million incurred in fiscal 2000. Excluding non-recurring expenses
of $1.6 mﬂlhon during fiscal 2000, as & result of the settlement of a lawsuit and related legal fees,

'/ - noninterest expense increased $3.2 million over the comparable pericd-one year ago The increase m the
“bank’s noninterest expense was pnmmﬂy in compensatnon ‘of $1.3 million, deprecnamon expense on
furniture fixtures and equipment of $180, 000, data | processmg of $477,000, occupancy-of $413,000 zmdl
-other operating expense of $481,000, when facmormg in $1.3 million related to the settlement. ‘Those

' < increases were attributable to the contmuedl expansion and growmh of the bank and an increase in. = -

_ commissions to-loan officers due to increased loan production and tthe related emplloyee benefit cost

N

ot assocna&ed with the increase in compensatnon ) . 5 ,
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- The following:table presents a comparison of the components_of noninterest expense. _
~ - : N : 4 n /‘
|

[N

o D © . YearsEnded - N ;o
- : ____September 30, Difference

v | RS , 2001 2000 . Amount %
- o ’ o ‘ ‘ (dollars in thousamds)
- Noninterest expense; - - 0O :

/ " Compensation and employee benefits 7 $6054 % 4738 $1316. - 27.78% -

"~ Qccupancy . - C0 1,607 1,194 - 413 34.59
Professional services " o - \’ 818 794 ' 24 . 3.02
. Advertising - - C 52 547 © - (25) (4.57)

- Deposit insurance prermum N . - 36 52 - 16) . (307D
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . 668 7 488 L1800 36.89-
' Data processing NN o ‘ 887 410 © 477 116.34
_~ Loss from foreclosed real estate - S £ M-+ (70.00)
Other operating expense - -~ 1,955 2,724 - (769) (28.23)

, Total noninterest expense $12,550 810,957 ~ $1,593 14.54%

RN

Income Taxes. The company files a consohdattedl federal income tax return with its subsndlnanes
- and computes its income tax provision or benefit on a consolidated basis. Since, as préviously indicated,

v the bank no longer recognizes a tax benefit for current operatmg ]losses there was no income tax benefit

b for fiscal 2@@]1 comparedl to a benefit of $600,000 in2000. ‘ A S

i

N Y Managemem has provndledl 2 valuation allowance lfor net dlelfemred tax assets of $2.5 million, as
‘ rthey are unable to detelrmme the Mmmg of the generatnon ‘of future taxable income. © -

At September 30, 2001, the Company has net opemtmg loss carryforwards tcotta}lmg approxnmateﬂy
$9.1 million, which expire in the years 2006 tc 2020. As a result of the change in ownership of the Bank
approximately $1.7 million of the total net opemtmg loss canyforwards are subject to an annual 1 usage
limitation of approximately $114, OOO : -

o N ~ Jor T

. Asset- Mabuﬂn{ty Mamgememit ~ R S

=~ PN

The pmmarry objective of asselt/habﬂntty nmnagemem is to-ensure the srceadly growth of the

> _ company’s primary earnings component, net interest income, and the maintenance of reasonable levels of
-~ capital mdlependlem of fluctuating interest rates. Imterest rate risk can be defined as the vulnerability of an
institution’s financial condition and/or resu]lfts of operattnons to.movements in interest rates. Interest rate
risk, or sensitivity, arises when the maturity or repricing characteristics of assets differ significantly from
the maturity or repricing characteristics of liabilities. Management endeavors to structure the balance -
~ sheet so that repricing opportunities exist for both assets and liabilities in roughly equivalent amounts at
approxnmate]ly the same time intervals to maintain nmexresf[ rate risk at an acceptable level. .

N

Mamagemem oversees rthe asset/liability managemem function and meets penodﬂcaﬂ]ly to monitor
SR and manage the structure of the balance sheet, control interest rate exposure, and evaluate pri¢ing strategies
for the company. The asset mix of the balance sheet is commuaMy evaluated in terms of several variables:
" yield, credi quality, appropriate funding sources and hqmdlnty Managemem of the kability mix of the
_ balance sheet focuses’on expanding the company's various funding sources. At Umes dlependmg on the
' level of general interest rates, the'relationship between long-and shom termm interest rates, market conditions
‘and competitive factors, the bank may determine to mcrease our mteresrc rate risk position in order to -
- mcrease our net interest margin. - R R "

/ R ) - . ) ,

v I . - - . .7 . ( e




> . . : [ LT . .
_“The bank manages its exposure to intérest rates by structuring the balance sheet in the ordinary
course of business. The bank currently emphasizes adljustablle rate loans and/dr loans that mature in a .
Jre]latnve]ly shomc period when compared to single-family, residential 16ans: In addition, to the extent possible, -
the bank attempts to attract longer-térm deposits. The bank has not entered into mstmments such as -
Heveraged derivatives, structured notes, interest rate swaps, caps, ﬂoors, financial oonns financial futcwres
contracts or forward dehvery commcts for the purpose of reducing interest rate ns]k

~

. One of the ways the | bank momtorrs mterest rate risk is through an am]lysns of the re]lanonshlp

! between interest-earning assets and mtezrest -bearing liabilities to measure the impact that future changes in

~ interest rates will/have on netqinterest income. An interest rate sensitive asset or liability is one that, within
) a-defined time period, either matures or experiences an interest rate change’in line with general market .
" interest rates. The management of interest rate risk is performed by ana]lyzmg thé maturity and repncmg
) reﬂatnonshlps between mterest-earmng assets-and mteresth—bearmg liabilities at specnﬁc points in time

~ (“GAP”) and by analyzing the effects of interest rate changes on net interest income over specific periods of

tcnme by pm]ectmg the perfomance of the mix of assetts and habﬂlntnes in varied interest rate emvmonments

The table be]low illustrates the maturities or repncmg of the compamy s assets and liabilities, /
mcﬂudmg nommerrest -bearing sources of funds, to specific periods at September 30, 2001.. Estimates and’
‘assumptnons concerning prepayment rates of major asset categories are based on information obtained from
the FHLB of Atlanta on projected prepayment levels on mo;rtgage -backed and related securities and decay
rates on savings, NOW and money market accounts. The bank beheves that such mformatnon is’ consnstem
* with our cumrem expernence S

~ -

-

J

N\
‘.

S ' N7 - A e -
- - ‘ o . _ 90 Days 91'Daysto 181 Daysto ‘One Year to Three Yeaﬁ's . Five Years - ’
Maturing or Repricing Periods” " . or Less 180.Days Ohe Year _ Three Years to.Five Years or More 'Jl‘i‘m/mﬂ
! Interest-gaming\assezts < N “(dollars ﬁm‘ttﬂmmsmmdl\si)_ ’ ’ —
E LOQ\IISI . o ] » ‘;‘ by - - - e . ’ s : t . f/
Adjustable and balloon.. '~ $ 20451 ~$ 6577 $25654. §3178r §9,119 § 94§ 93,676
- Fixed-rate (1) 16,146 -1 506 976 3460 2,841 , . 8,196 32,125 -
Second mortgages - ot 430 . . 141 < 267 893 666 978 3,‘3'75"
Commercial busmess ;- ~ 5,260 . ;-1 1358 708 2 733 222 ' - 13,281 .
- Consumer L 35165 167 1316 1,041 15 R 37,000
g Investment securities - 120,903 -~ 45 .88 - 330 2,296 4,511 ~ 128,173
Mortgage-backed securities 6,686 - 6,617 . 10,299 9,339 4237 1,180 ' 38,358
“Total ‘ 209,041 14,411 38,308 . 49,577 19,692 14,959 345988
' Imztemsz-beammg Zlmbnlmes , ' B U . " \ i
Deposits: * - . e oo T ) ‘ . :
Savmgs accounts - 232 232 324 O, 11,205 - 788 . 1,854 | 4,635
NOW a’cécjun\t”s s 731 1,731 1,875 4,903 1,208 - 2,884 14,422
'\iMoneyma"rket accounts 714, 769 14,769 .. 15,337 . 6,249 2,840 ' 2,841 56,805
Certificates of depésit 38, 775 23,392 , 52,331, 2,?,871 B 3,053 ' 95 147,523,
Borrowings:, ) v e -~ C . “ , ™ ' P . M
FHLB advances 46,500 3,000 - N - 25000 74,500
Other borrowings - 43,323 - LR - - .- 43,323
Total - - /' 145330 743,124 69,873~ 7 42228 7,979 32,674 -$341,208 -
GAP ~ $ 63,711 $(28,713) $(31,565) - $ 7,349 $11,713 ~ $(17,715)  § 4,780_
Cumulative GAP "$63711  $34998- -$3433 ' $10,782  $22495 § 4,780 .
Ratio of Cunmu]l'aﬁﬁve"G%P - ‘ NS R
to totdl assets ’ ) 18.41% 10.12% 0.99% 7 _312%. < “6.50% ~1.38% . °
(1), Includes $14.8 millidn of 10ans held for sale n the 90 days o less repricing period. B ;
P A . \“ B - = ‘ \ / i ) _ o .
O . R LY - o A
‘ ~ ' N N . . .
‘ < ) /) / T ’ )
. A ~ ~ ’ \“ ‘ ~ N :
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sensitive in the amount of $3.4 million ant September 3@ 2001. o

While the GAP position is a usefu]l tool in measuring interest rate risk and conmbmes toward
effective asset and liability management, it is difficult to predict the effect of chamgmg interest rates
solely on the measure, without accounting for alterations in the maturity or repricing characteristics of the
balance ‘sheet that occur during changes in market interest rates. The GAP position reflects only the
prepayment assumpttnons pemammg to the current rate environment and assets tend to prepay morre rapidly
during penodls of decllmmg interest rates than during periods of rising interest rates.

Managemem uses two other. anadlyses to manage interest rate risk: (1) an eammgs -at-risk ana]ly51s /‘
.to develop an estimate-of the direction and magnitude of the change in net interest income if rates move
up or down 100 to 300 basis points; ‘and (2) a value-at-risk analysis to estimate the direction and

' magnitude of the change in net portfolio value if rates move up or down 100 to 200 basis points. L

Currently the bank uses 2 sensitivity of net interest income analysis prepared by the FELB of Atlanta to'
measure emmngs-at-nsk and the OTS Interest Rate Risk Exposure Report to measure value-at- risk.

The following table sets forth the earnings at risk analysis that measures the sensmvny of net interest |
income to changes in interest rates at-September 30, 2@0]1 . ~

/

a . Net Interest [ncome Sermsuttnvufty Amnalysis ' /

Chamnges im ™ “ ]Balsus Poimt . [Percemt
. Rate by Basls  Net Interest Change Change \ )
: W Poimg M&gnm - _FromBase _[From Base T .
e +300 - '313% | (0.09)% " (2.80)% , ; - ;
g ‘ +200 . - 3.16% (0.06)% T (1.86)% ' ' o
- +100 « 3.20% (0.02)% ©02)% - ’ \
+0 3.22% -, 5 - s
- -100. . 321% . (0.0D)% ©03D% ‘
E -200 3.12% ©0.100% @i B »
0.37% (]l]l 49)% _ . S :

3000 ¢ 2.85%

N
[}

“The table indicates fthatt if basedl om an mmmednate and sustained 2@@ basis pomt increase in
" market interest rates, net interest margin, as measured, as a percent of tom]l assets, would decrease by, 6
basns points or 1.86%. Conversely, if interest rates decrease 200 basis points net mterest margin, asa !
percem of mmﬂ assets, would dlecrease by 10 basis points or 3.11%. . - ‘ ; \ B

The net interest income sensitivity analysis does not represem a forecastt and shou]ldl not be relied upon ’
as being indicative of expected operating results. The estimates used are based upon the assumption asto the

~ ‘nature and timing of interest rate levels including the shape of the yne]ldl curve. These estimates have been
developed based upon current economic conditions; the company cannot make any assurances as to the
predictive nature of these assumpnons mc)lud\mg how customer plreferemces or compemor mﬂuences might
/chmge oo S : . N ) ‘
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© 200 basis points, cumrem]ly exceeds the company s mtcema]l board gmdehnes

N,

Y M@lmﬁﬂufﬁy and C&pﬂ&aﬂ Rescmunmes SR

\

-

-~

»)

-
-

-

N \ o o Ne& Portfolio Value - the Present Value of Assets
Changes in Dollar Percent "Net Portfiolio Change fn
Rates (bp) -~ - Change 1 Change - Value Ratio - NPV Ratio
: ) (dollars im thousands) =~ - ' " S
200 -$5,818, © . 26.18% 7.57% /f/ 1.57%
L . +100 . 3,]134/ 14.10 -~ 6.92 - 092 -
) +0 Co- - 6.00 o~ b
, - -100 ~ ~(3,283) S Qa7 5.11 ‘ - 10.89)
b - =200 N (3,699) _\\(]16.64); ‘S.QO ' (11.00,),

-

)

~.

. amortization of loans are predncmb]le sources of funds, deposit flows and momgage prepayments are’
.greatly influenced by-general interest rates, economic conditions aumdl compemmon The bank has
continued to maintain the levels of hqmd assets as previously required by OTS regulations. The bank

manages its ]lnquudnty posntnon and demands for funding primarily by investing excess funds in short- term
investments and ufmhzmg FHLB advance \and reverse repwrchase agreemems in penodls whem the bank’s

R

demands for hqmdmy exceed fundmg from deposit inflows.

-~

~

The bank’s most liquid assets are cash and cash equnva]lents securities available- for-sale a.nd
trading securities. The levels oﬁf these assets are dependent.on the bank’s operating, financirg, lending
and investing activities during any given petiod.. At September 30, 2001, cash and cash equivalents,

- ifiterest beaunng deposits, and secunmes avan]lab]le for-sale and tradmg secumnes totaled $151.1 mMnon, or

40. 77% of total assets.

J

N ‘f// i

,

N

Liguidity. The bank’s pnmm’y sowrces of-funds are deposits, pnncnpaﬂ andl interest payments on
_loans, mortgage-backed and investment securities and borrowings. While maturities and scheduled

(’

"~ The nmpn‘ovemem in net portfoho value of $5.8 Im]lhon or 26.18% in the evem of 2 200 basis pomt o
. increase in rates is a result of the current amount of adjustable. rate loans and investments held by the bank as of -
September 30, 2001. The foregoing, decliné in net portfolio value, in the event of an increase in interest rates of

-~

The primary mvestmg activities of the bank are the origination of residential one- to four-family loans;-

commercial real estate loans, real estate construction and development loans, commercial borrowing and
consumer loans and the purchase of Umted States Treasury and agency securities, mortgage-backed and
mortgage-related securities and other mvestmem securities. During the year ended September 30, 2001, the
bank’s loan ongmauons and purchases fotaled $103.9 million. Purchases of Umfted States Treasury and agency
securities, momtgage—balcked and mortgage related securities and other investment securities totaled $Il@6 4-

mﬂhom for the year ended September 30, 20@11 ~

Presemed be]low sas of September 3@ 200]1 is an zma]lysns of our mterest rate ‘risk as measured by ;
changes in net{ pomfoho value for parallel shifts of 2@0 basis. pomts in market interest mtes

e
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-, The bamk has other sources o]f hqundnty if a need for addmoma]l fundls arises. At September 30, ;
2001, the bank had $74.5 million in advances outstanding from the FHLB and had an additional overall ..
bomrowmg capacity from the FHLB of $36.7 million at that date. Dependmg on market conditions, the
pricing of deposit products and FHLB advances, the bank may commue to rely on FHJLB bomrowmgs to

- fund asset gmwf&h . - oo -

~. At September 30, 2001, the bank had commitments to qund loans and unusedl ouffsmmdlmg lines of
credit, unused standby letters of credit and umdnsbursedl proceeds of construction mortgages totaling $99. 4
million. The bank anticipates that it will have sufficient funds available to meet its current loan -

' origination commitments. ‘Certificate accounts, including IRA and Keogh accounts, which are scheduled
to mature in less than one year from September 30, 2001, totaled $1 14.3 million. Based upon experience,
management believes the majority of maturing certificates of dleposnff will remain with the bank. In
addition, management of the bank believes that it can adjust the rates offered on certificates of deposit to-
retain deposits ini changing inferest rate environments. In the event thata sngmﬁcam porticn of these -
deposits are not retained by the bank, the bank. would be able to utilize FHLB advances and reverse

- repurchase agreements to fund deposit withdrawals, which would result in an increase in interest éxpense

. to the extent that the average rate pamdl on such bonowmgs exceeds the average rate paid on deposits of

L smm]lar duration. , ~ -

/

.. Capital Resources. At Sepmember 30, 2@@]1 the bank exceeded all minimum regu]lattory capital .
requirements with a tangible capital level of $20.4 ‘million, or 5.51% of total adjusted assets, which
exceeds the required level of $5.5 million, or 1.50%; core capital of $20.4 millicn, or 5.51% of total
adjusted assets, which exceeds the required level of $14.8 million, or 4.00%; and risk-based capital of
~ $21.2 million, or-11.36% of msk-wenghted assets, whnch exceedls the Jrequmed ]leve]l of $14.9 million, or
8.00%.

2000 Compared to 1999 - B S .

Net Income. For the fiscal yeaur ended September 30, 2600 the company mcwnred a'net loss of $3 6
million or $1.21 per share compared to net income of $101,000 or $0.07 per share for fiscal year 1999. The
$3.7 million decrease in net income over the comparable pericd one yeat ago was primarily due to the
+ decline i in income from mortgage- banking activities. *Also, contributing to the decrease in income was the
. settlement of 2 lawsuit against Creater Atlantic Mortgage Corporation costing $1.3 million and the sale.and

. reclassification by the Bank of cemam investment securities at a loss of $1.0 million. o

.
- . . - , N
: : J

. Net Z/nterest Income. An important sowrce of our earnings is net interest income, which is the

" difference between income earned on interest- -earning assets, such as loans, investment securities and

* mortgage-backed securities, and interest paid on interest-bearing sources of funds such as deposits and
borrowings. The level of net interest income is'determined primarily by the relative average balances of -
interest-earning assets and mterest-bearmg liabilities in combination with the yields earned and rates paid
upon them. The correlation between the repncmg o]f mterestt rates.on assets and on liabilities a]lso
mﬂuences net interest income. - = g - .
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The foﬂowmg tabﬂe presems a. compamson of the componems “of mterest mcome amd expense and
net interest income. = 7- - Lo \

RN \ by ! R - - N . g . 7 s 4
- . ‘ . ) o L . __ Difference
Years ended Septembér 30, - 2000 . 1999  Amount - - %
\ A .7 (dolldrs in thousands) . Lo
Interest income: = - _ N ) ~ ey .
e Loans , -~ <~ . _S8462 0 $42100 [T $4252 101.00%
s Investments - - - 9,310 - 4,836° 4474 92.51
S - Total ., - - R - 17,772 . . 9,046 8,726 9646 -~
L. S > . : SN N .
_ . Interest expense: . 7 ) L0 ‘ o
. Deposits - . - . 7668 54997 T 2,169 /3944
« /_Borrowings ' T 5426 . -~ 881 -~ -~ 4545. . 515.89
_ Total - . R _ 13094 - 6380 6714 10524 .
Net interést income _ . - _ 84678 $2666 $2,@‘1<2 75.47%
N ;\7 ; o \ . o o C
Voo Cur growth m net/mterest income for fiscal year 200@ was due pnman]ly 0 the i increase in avemge .

" interest-earning assetts resuhmg from our p}lanmed gzrowth Although average interest-earning “assets increased
T $1 10.4 million or 83.80% over the comparable pemod one-year ago, a decline in the net interest- margin (net
interest income divided by average interest-earning ‘assets) of 9 basis points limited the increase in net interest
income to $2.0 million. The declinein net interest margin resulted from a sngmﬁcam increase in investments at
a yield lower than cou]ld have been obtained nf the ﬁmds bad been mvested in loans. ¥ 4 -

< Interest Income Interest income for fiscal year 2000 mcreased $8.7 miilion from fiscal year 1999
P primarily as a result of ‘an increase in the avemge omstandmg balances in loans, investment securities and -
SN . morEgage-backed securities resulting in large measure from the planned ]leverragmg of our capital. The i increase
in interest income from' the loan portfolio for fiscal year 2000 ) compared to interest incomé earned for fiscal
o 1999, resuﬂteﬁl from an increase of $55 2 million in the average balance of loans outstanding. That increase was
S coupled with an increase in interest income from the investment and mortgage-backed securities pomfohos .
resulting from an increase of $55.3 million in the average omstandmg balance, and was coupﬂedl with a 48 Ibasns

point mcrease in the average yneﬂd earned on the portfolio. -~ L -

Interest Expense. The increase in. iriterest expense on deposnts and bomrowed funds for ﬁsca]l year 2000
compared tc 1999 was principally the result of a significant increase in the average omsmndmg balances in total
deposits and borrowed funds, coupled with a 64 basis pomm mcrease in the average cost of funds. The increase

_ in interest expense on deposits of $2.2 xrmlhon was pnman]ly dué tc an increase in average certificates of dleposnt
S of $14.7 mﬂlhon or 17.08% from $86.1 miltion for fiscal 1999 to $100.9 mMnom for fiscal 2000, and was ’
~ coupled with 2 44 basis point increase in the average rate paid from’5.37% for fiscal 1999 t0 5.81% for fiscal
- 2000. The average rate we paid for deposits incréased from 5.24% for fiscal 1999 to 5.59% for fiscal 2000.
= That increase in rate was coupledi with an increase of $32 4 million in the avemge omstanmdmg baﬂance of
' deposits. o .- . oo
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Compammve Avemge Balances and Interest Income Analyszs The following table presents the total
" dollar amount of interest income from avemge interest-earning assets and the resultant yields, as well as the
“interest expense on average interest-bearing liabilities, expressed both in dollars and annualized rates. No
tax-equivalent adjustments were made and all average balances are average daily balances. Non- -accruing
loans have beemx included in the ttabﬂes as loans carrying a zerc yneﬂd o o

For the Yeanrs Ended &pﬂemh@r 3@

~

o 2000 1999
N . Interest . . - Imferest Average
Avéﬁ'age Incomre/ Average AVérage . Income/ Yields -
‘Balance  Expense _ Vield/ Rate . Balgnee - Expense Rate

Assetss - (d]@llﬂaxrs mm &h@uns&mdls)

]Interest-eaxmng assets: - -
© Real estate loans . $ 87,468 - $ 6,699 7.66%' B 45,090 $3,685 8.17%
Consumer loans - ; 13,980 1,236 8.84 - 4,167 320 7.68-
Commercial business loans 5,469 527 9.64 .7 2,497 - 205 821

Total loans' 106,917 '8,462 791 v -51,754. 4,210 813 -
Investment securities . 75,808 5,380 7.10” . 47,208 2,976 630
Mortgage-backed securities 59489 - . 3,930 6.61 32,816 1,860 5.67

Total intérest-earning assets 242,214 17,772 7.34 131,778 9,046 6.86

Non-earning assets 9,203 ‘ 5,611 ; /

Total assets ; $251,417 . $137,389

]Lmbnﬂnfm@s amdl Sﬂmkﬂn@ﬂdlem’

Equity: : ’

Intérest-bearing liabilities: < . » N
Savings accounts ‘ $ 1,532 .. 4 v 260 $ 1,079 36 T334
Now and money market accounts _ 34882 - 1,772 5.08 17,688 841 4.75
Certificates of deposit - . . 100,858 . 5,856 5.81 86,142 " 4,622 5.37

Total deposits o 137,272 7,668 559 104,909 5,495 5.24

FHLE advances - 55,691 3,419 \6.14 16,371 810 4,95
Otherborromngs © 31,100 12,007 6.45 1,301 . 71 . 546 ..

Total interest-bearing liabilities 224,063 13,094 - 5.84 122,581 6,380 5.20

Noninterest-bearing liabilities: ‘ . ‘ PREN ’

Nomnterest-beanng demand deposxts 11:9]16 N 1,855

Cther liabilities : S 13T , 1,802

. Total liabilities 227,350 ‘ . 126,238-

Stockholders’ equity 24,067 - . 11,151
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $251,417 - $137,389 ‘ -

Net interest income ‘ $ 4,678 $2,666 ’

Interest rate spread ) ' 1.49% I 1.66%

 Net interest margin - 193% 2.02%




B

Rate/Volume Analyszs The following table presems certain mforma&non Jrega]rd]mg changes in ]
interést income and interest expense attributable to changes in interest rates and changes in volume of N
interest-earning assets and nmerest-bearmg liabilities' fom the pemods indicated. The change in interest
attributable to both rate and volume has been allocated to the changes in réte and volume on a pro rata basns

~

L P - g Years Ended Sep&emben' 30, 2000 v. 11999
N T Change Attributable to | \
o R Volume . _Rate . Total
N ' SR - (inthousands) .
S  Real esmte lloans 5 -, $3,463- $(449) - $3,014 ‘
) Consumer loans . A - . 754 162~ ~ 916 .
- _, \ Commercial business feans ° . - 244~ .~ 718 7 322 e
., Totalloans -~ / : ) - 4,461 : (209) 4,252
Investments ‘ B B 1,803 . 601 7 2404 , ,
‘ k -Mortgage-backed securities o 1,512 }"‘\ 558 . . 2,070 . /
y s " Total interest- earmng assets - $7776 - . $ 950 - $8,726 -
' . Savings accounts = - - ’ $ 15 $(1D $ 4
. - - Now andlmomeymafrket accoums o © o818 “.oo1u3 - 931
i _ Certificates of deposit , -~ - 790, 444 -~ 1,234
7, ' Total deposits . oo . 1,623, ~ 546 T 2,169
: " FHLB advances - = - o 1,945 7 664 2,609
T /Y Other borrowings N 1,626 - . 310 1,936 -
' Total interest- bea.rmg lidbilities. N 5,194 1,520 6,714 .
’ "Change i in net mtejrest income ~ ) $2,582\ { ‘$\(570)“‘ ) $2,®12 ; o

L Provzszon for Loan Losses The aMowance for lloam losses, which is estalbhshed through provisicns
for lossés charged to expense, is increased by recoveries on loans previously charged off and is reduced by
. charge-offs on loans. Determining the’ proper reserve level or allowance involves management’s judgment
" based upon a review of factors, including the company’s internal review process which segments the loan ~
portfolio into groups based on various risk factors including the types of loaris and asset classifications.
Each segment'is then assigned a reserve pelrcemage based upon the perceived risk in“that segment.
Ahhough managemem utilizes-its best judgment in provndlmg for probabﬂe losses, there can be no assurance
" that the company will not have to increase its provisions for loan losses in the future as a result of an
~ adverse mmr]ket for real estate and economic conditions generally in the company’s piimary ‘market area,
/ future increases in non-performing assets or for other reasons which would adlverseﬂy aﬁfect the company s

results of opemnons ‘ R ‘ LR p

s
A

\\\

. ‘The i mcrease in non—perfomung loans of $171, 000 dlwrmg fiscal 2000, resulted pnma.nlly from mhe

addmon of two commercial loans and one residential loan to non-performing status. Excluding those three.

' non-performing loans, the bank experienced a general decline during fiscal 2000, reﬂectmg continued

| . stability in the local real estate market. The allowance for loan losses mcreasedl $175,000 during fiscal

' " 2000, and resulted primarily from the $225,000 addition from the Dominion acquisition offset by net

S charge-oﬁfs exceeding the provision by $50,000. Net charge-oﬂ’s increased from $14,03C during fiscal 1999

" to $63,000 during fiscal 2000 as new management took a more agglressnve posture in assessing collectability
of classified loans. Management expects charge—offs to increase in the future as a result of the increase in
its ftota]l loan portfolio during fiscal 2000. While we have continued our loan loss provisions in response to
our, comtmued growth in real estate loans, we have allowed our allowance for loan losses to decline as a
percentage of loans due to the continuation of low charge- off and nom-performmg loan to average loan ,
pen'cemages
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- Non-Interest Income. Non-interest income declined during fiscal 2000, over the comparable period
one year ago, primarily as a result of a decline of $2.9 miilion in gain on sale of loans, reflecting a . '
‘decreased volume of loan originations.and sales from the company’s mortgage banking activities. That y
decrease was coupled with a loss on sale of investments of $1.0 million. That loss occurred as a result of
the Bank transferring $22.8 million in securities from avan]lab]le for sale to trading resulting in-a loss of -
$580,000, with the remaining $420,000 of loss on sale of i mvesttmem securities resulting from sales of $18. ¢
‘million in securities available for sale as the Bank restmctcwed its investment securities portfolio, while ‘ N
improving its net interest margin and interest rate risk position. The pmceeds from the sale will be re- R
invested in substantially higher yne]ldlmg loans and nmerest sensitive investments nmprovmg - future
operations. <

During the fiscal year endedl September 30, 2000, the momgage compamy omgmatedl andl
disbursed $117.0 million in mortgage loans for sale comparedl t0 $294.8 million during the comparable
" period one year ago. The $177.8 million decrease in loans originated and disbursed was largely ‘
attributable to increases in market interest rates, which reduced home mortgage refinancings. During the - ,
- period, subsmnnaﬂﬂy all loans originated were sold in the secondary market, in most cases with servicing ‘
Teleased. Proceeds from the sale of loans for fiscal 2000 amounted to $}12]l 3 million compared to $3 18.1
million during the’ comparab]le period one year ago. Sales of loans resulted in gains of $2.5 mn]lhon and

$5.4 million for fiscal 2000 and ﬁsca]l 1999, respemwe]ly, , ) y
The following Eab}le presents a compamson of the components ‘of non-interést mcome
P B Years Ended Sepft@mberr 30, ’ Duﬁ‘ﬁ‘en‘emce
N o o 2000 1999 Amoumt %
. o (dollars in thousands) ' : i
Noninterest income: - ‘ ~ S . ‘ R L
-Gain, on sale-of loans > ) $ 2,466 '$5,408 - $(2,942) ‘ (54.40)%
Service fees on loans o 464 o513 . (49) . (9.55)
Service fees on deposits - - 177 . 110 67 . 6091
Gain (ioss) on sale of mvestment securmes ’ (1,025) 24 (1,049) ©  (4,370.83)
Other operatmg income o (28) - 26 (54 (207.69)
Total noninterest income - . $2054 =~ . $6,081 $(4,027) (66.22)%,

Non- Interest Expense. Non-interest expense increased $2.2 million; over the comparable period

one year ago mainly because of a non-recurring expense asa result of the settlement of 2 lawsuit and related
legal fees amoummg to $1.6 million, of which $1.3 million related to the settlement.. Excluding that non- .
recurring increase in non-interest expense relating to the settlement of the lawsuit and professional fees,
non-interest expense would have increased $606,000 during fiscal 2000 when compared to fiscal 1999. A
_ significant portion of the increase in compensation and. emp]loyee benefits and cccupancy expense resulted

from the addition of new employees and property in the Dominion acquisition. The remaining salary and
benefits expense increase reflects base salary and staff increases during the past fiscal year. Increased data -
processing cost of $226,000 resulted from addlnnonall systems acnvMy, conversion costs and the commued
glrowwth amd expansnon of the Bam]k /

~ /
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. - _The foll]lpwmg/ttabﬂe presents a comparison of the components of noninterest expense. ~ !
. . - } \ . : ) . / A
Co s o f /‘}\‘,Yeau'sIEmded - | :
. : ‘ ' Sentember 30, . Difference
.. o 2000 | 1999 Amount %~
__— o A o S (dollars in thousands) - TN
- Noninterest expense: e . , o Lo - : LT
~ Compensation and employee benefits T $4,738 0 $4,523 $ 215 4.75% '
. Occupancy T o 1,194 914. 280 30.63 ~ -
‘\Pfofessional services ., ) 794 / 388" ,'/\’ B " 406 <" 104.64 k,‘
_ Advertising I s ~oesl T oy T (7128 0
Deposit insurance premium > . ) 64 (12) _(18.75)
. '\Y}Fumnure," fixtures and equipment 488 412 \\/ J6 . : "18.45
Data processing PR oo 410 ~184 2260 12283
_ - Loss froi foreclosed real estate .~ « <. 10 197 ¢ O (47.37)
Other operating expense . e 2,724 1,624 1,100 67.73
. . Tofal noninterest expense ' -~ - $10,957 $8,789 - $2,168- - 24.67% -

< N

~

. . . < - . L .
L . _Income Taxes. The company files 2 consolidated federal income tax return with its subsidiaries and -
computes its income tax provision or bénefit on 2 consolidated basis. The income tax

_ armounted to $600,000 compared to $169,000n fiscal 1995,

S

~

"’Mé:nagémem\has pmvidlgd 2 valuation allowance for net deferted tax assets of $1.7 million, as..

_they believe that it is more likely than not that the-entire amount
realized— - - - - / re am

- AtSeptember 30, 2000, the
'$6.7 million, which expire in the years 2006 to

-

Fe

y

limitation of anmxima\ztcf,lly\SslM.,O@O.' / -,
Recém Accounting Standards Lo

iz

) . principles. In-addition, SAB 102 sets forth guidelines for

~ allowance for loan losses. The Company adopted SAB 102 on

documentation thereof, has been in effect since the

N

_ combinations be accounted for using the purchase method and
_ assets apart from goodwill if they arise from contractual or other legal rights,

‘December 15,2001, , ..

A - : .- y

rN

~

N

of deferred tax assets will not be

Compdny has net opemltiné loss qarryfoﬁ'Wards tdﬁalﬁng appquimatei[y
‘ 2020. As aresult of the change in ownership of the bank,
approximately $1.7 million of the total net operating loss carryforwards are ‘subject to an annual usage

Y
e

A . In,]unei@();l ,the FASB issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business

L Com}?inat‘iiohs’f‘(;SFAS No, 141), and No. 142, “Goodwill and OtherIntangible Assets” (SFAS No. 142).
SFAS No. 141 ¢hanges the accounting for business combinations, requiring that all business h

that intangible assets.be recognized as -

or if they are separable or

: capable of being separated from-the acquired entity and sold, transferred, liggnséd, rented, or exchanged.

’ SFAS No. 141 is effective for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 200L. SFAS No. 142
specifies that financial -accounting and reporting for acquired goodwill and other intangible assets.
-/ Goodwill and-intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives will not be amortized but rather will be
" tested avleast annually for impairment. SFAS No. 142 is effective for fiscal years beginning and after

benefit in fiscal 2000

'~ In July 2001, The Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 102
«Selected Loan Loss Allowance Methodology and Documentation Issues” (“SAB 102”). SAB 102 sets ¢
. forth guidelines for determining the allowance for loan losses.under generally accepted accounting
documentation by Tegistrants-in support of the
October 1, 2001. The Company’s banking
> subsidiary has a detailed loan classification and estimated lloss'calcuﬂétioﬁ\metmdology\in,effec‘:t,“ whichis |
. the basis for the determination of the allowance for loan losses. This methodology and related |
1 Company _acquired the banking subsidiary in 1997.
The Company Td‘e]liqve‘s that adoption of SAB 102 will have no impact on the financial statements. :

3
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SFAS No. M2 requires fthafﬁ the usefull lives of mtzmgnb}le assets acqmred on or be]fore June 30
2001 are reassessed and the remaining amortization periods adjusted accordingly. Prevnouslly recognized’
intangible assets deemned to have indefinite lives shall be tested for impairment. Goodwill recognized on
or before June 30, 2001, shall be assigned to-one or more reporting units and shall be tested for .
impairment as of the beginning of the ﬁscaﬂl year in whnch SFAS Ne. ]142 is mma]llly applied in it’s

, emmrety : |
" The Company will adopt S]FAS 142 on October 1, 2@011 and, accordmg]ly, will dnsconmmue ;
amortization of the exiting goodwill. The adopuom of SFAS 142 will reduce .amortization' expense /. T
appmmma&eﬂy $93, 0@@ in ﬁscall 2002. . N - ! L
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We have audnfted the accompanymg consohdlattedl statements of financial condition of Greater
Atlantic ‘Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries as of September 30, 2001 and 2000, a.ndl the related
" consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive i mcome, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for
R ¢ - the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsnbﬂntcy of the Compamy s managemem
~ - Our esponsnbnhﬁ:y is to express an opnmon on these financial statements based on our audhlts b -

. We‘conduc&ed our audits in accordzmce with generally accepted audmmg standards ‘Those -
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
- financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the ﬁnancna]l statements. An audit also includes
. assessing the accounting principles used and sngmfncam estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement ]plresemmon We believe fthamt our-audits pmvnde a reasonab]le
basis for our opmnon - - ‘ -y

N s h > N

S IIn our opinion, the: consolidated ﬁnancna]l statements Irefened to above presem ]fmﬂy, in all ‘

~ material respecfts, the financial position of Gréater-Atlantic Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries at Sepmember :
.30, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the yeaurs tthen endledl in ~

confommy with genem]l}ly acceptced accounting ]pnncnp]les : . ro
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‘Greater- Atlantic Financial Corp and Subszdtarzes -
C@msm}ﬂndaﬁ@aﬂ Staﬁem@m&s of IFmaJmcnaH Condition -

\

N

September 30, N ‘ - 2001 2000
: o . , ‘ I . (dollars in {hozlsands) :
Assets o ' L .
~Cash and cash equivalents - S o $ 1,456 $ 2312
Interest bearing deposits ‘ » 1,962 3,405
Investment securities (Notes 3 andl M)) ‘ o : C B
Available-for- sa]le : R : o 146,366 =/ 86,580
" Held-to-maturity ' . - 22,739 . 27,600
Trading . o 1312 22,766
Loans held for sale (No&e 4) : R ‘ "7 14,683 5,599
Loans receivable, net (Notes 41, 10 and 16) : ‘ - L 164 603 ' 132,698
‘Accrued interest and dividends receivable (Note 5) / T 2,777 2,494
Deferred income taxes (Note 11) T Sz - 1,520 - 1,520 -
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost - o - 3910 3,560
Foreclosed real estate (Note 7) ' - P 172
. Premises and equipment, net (Note 6) " ’ , ‘ - . 6,350 4,859
Goodwill (Note 2) - . . o ’ A : 1,284 ~1,378 .
* Prepaid expemses andl other assets ‘ 1,642 1,353
~ N - ‘ , I $370,604 °  $296,296
~Liabilities and stockholders’ equity. s o /
Libilities . o o S
Deposits (Note 8) : : . $229,982 $188,387
Adlvamce paymemts from borrowers for taxes andl msumnce N - 220 264
Accn'ued expenses and other liabilities (Note 9) ) o 1,399 S 3,942
. Advances from the FHLB and other bomrowmgs (Note ]l@) T 117,823 " 82,836
Totaﬂ habﬂnﬂes - > } B 349,424 275,429 -
" Commitments and contmgenéies (Note 12) ~ ~ -« : . -
Stockholders’ Equity (Notes 13 and 14) ‘ ‘ o
Preferred stock $.01 par value - 2,500, 000 shaures authonzed . i
none ocutstanding o .
Common stock, $.01 par value~ 10, 000,000. T
.- shares authorized; 3, 0@7 434 shares oumsmndmg e 30 30
Adldlmnonall pand-m capital = . p - ' /25,]132 25,132
Accumulated deficit . - \ o (3450) (2,928)
“Accumulated omher comprehensnve loss . : (532), (1,367)
- Total stockholders’ equity ‘ - ] .. 21,180 - 20,867,
g $296,296_ -

" Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . ] ' $370,604

- See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
{ : . g




Greater Atlantic Finrancial  Corp. and Subszdzanes ‘ o | (N

@@nsaﬂndmeaﬂ Statements of @p@m&m@m v AP
1 \ o Years ended Sgptember 30, . T 7 L B 2001 . 2000
S S0 ’ IV - B S (dollars in (housbnd;)
Interest income S : S S
Loans - _ i S oo : $ 12,658 - " $ 8462
o Investments - - S : . 10,965 . 9,310
o - Total interest income: o L~ 23623 17,772
Interest expense . S , P ) ST L
Deposits (Note'8) » ~ . ‘ , . o 11,629 . 7,668
"= Borrowed money 7 S A \5,‘618‘ . 5,426
_ Total intérest expense > _ 0 , o 17,247 - . 13,094
Netinterest income - o o 6376 / 4,678
Provision for loan losses (Note 4) _ - 55 ‘ 13
Net interest income after provision for loan losses -~ -~ : 6,321 - T 4,665
) T N , : A : P
- Noninterest income ‘ o N Py :
i Fees and service charge:sv . . B RPN J129 4 641[
Gain on sale of loans s s o L 43350 g 2 466
. Gain (loss) on sale of investment secumnes . . Soe T - 194 (1 ,025)
Gain (toss) on sale of real estate owned o - o - N 45 L 14
Gain (loss) on sale-of mvestmem securmes P IS 4 L (42)
-, Total nonmterest income > ey : B 75,707 2,054
- 3 > P 3 . T D B 7 > \ = o
Nomme]rest expense : N N o e~ : S
_Compensation and employee benems T ' . 6,054 - - 4,738
) Occupancy ;o i SN -7 1,607 1,194
, . Professional sérvices . LT : ST, 818 794 -
" Advertising .. I N L 522 547~
Deposit insurance premium L Lo - R - 36 52
_ Furniture, ﬁxtures and equnpment ’ o o _ 668 488
. . " Data processing - R ’ L 887 7410
' Other real estite owned expenses (Note 7) ) P 3 10
Other o Jpemtcmg expenses . S L :11,955 2,724
Total noninterest expense ' L - I S 12,550 - ]1@,_9157
' Loss before income tax benefit - ) o . , (522) ' (4,238)
. Incometaxbenefit Notelly - © . - - ~ (600)
) " Net (loss) income - L - $ /(522) $ (3,638)
\‘ Basic and diluted (]loss) earmngs per share (Note 15) ) $ .17 $,(121)
See accompanymg notes to corgi‘so]lﬁdafced financial stgteménté. ¢ o !
) . . . . ): »/‘» . c oy c N ‘ . - . . . - / J
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Préféned Common  Paid-in

Earnings

Additional Accumulated _ Other - N
Comprehensive Stockholders’ -

" Greater Aslantic Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehenstve (Loss) Income
Years ended September 30, 2001 . 2000
] N, ) b - (in thbu;and&) - -
Net loss = $(522) $(3,638) /
- Other comprehensive loss, net of tax: T .
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities N 835 - (485) '
Other comprehensive income (loss), ) 835 . .(485)
Comprehensive income (loss) v $313 $(4,123)
See accompanying notes to consolidated firiancial statements.
. G;eater Atlaniic Financial Corp. and wasidiajr/iesiv p TN
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity - E
Accumulated » T (;t al

Stock ;Stock * Capital (Deficit) . Income (Loss) Equity
- o . ' (dollars in thousands) ) |
‘ Baﬂance/at September 30, 1999 $.o- 8 30 - $ 25,132 ~$ 710 $ (882 §$ 24,990 -
Other complgehensive income / o . ~(485) - (4183) -
Net loss for the period -~ . - - (3638 . - (3638)
Balance at Seprtémber 30, 2000 - 0 25,132 (2,928) - (1,367) - 20,867
Otheir compréhensive income - - . B - 835 835
Net loss for the pericd e ¢ 72 N (522)
' Balance at September 30,2001 - § - $30  $25,132  $(3,450) $(532) \ $21,180
See accompanymg notes to-consolidated financial srtaitc:menfgs;» ( , o
. - "y ' . i ! )
. o . T ' . / . P
: o ‘ —
‘ _ BT o
. i ; ) , ) . - 4 )
g . = ' ) . * ‘,\ ‘ .
N \/ - ) N | "« , o . l : “\ ‘ /\ \
\ 4 \ . ‘ _ r\\ B B /\
5 ’ - | ‘ i : .
N P / / . ) \ . » ) ] , Bl -
Y - s / / , ) 26 \.) ,
. T o ' - - ) - /

e e e




s\ T ' ¢ ! ) N 4 ~
, 1 7 :
N 4
) \ - 5 N
e / - = | .
) - Greater Atlantic F znanczal Corp and Subszdzames g N
B C@MS@M@M@@J Sm&@mmﬁs of @ash EFH@'\ws - .
. Years ended September 3’0 2001 2000
SN . ; / (in.thousands)
: \Cash flow. from operating actti'\‘/mcsl k J
* Net loss- ‘ ) $ (522) % (3,638)
a ~ Adjustments to reconcn]le net (ILoss) income Ito ne& cash
- provided by opérating activities / -~ ‘
| / ‘Provision for loan losses | h 55 - 13
i o Amortization of excess of purchase’ pnce over assetts acq]umredl - v 93 -
- Amortization of deposit acquisition adjustment = 143 -
o~ ‘Amomzarmom of loan acqunSﬂmm adlnustmem B @7
S Deprecnauon "and amormanon o N 529 - 376
PR Deferred income taxes -/~ N N (196)
o Proceeds from sale of Uadmg secumnes f - 20,164 5,578
g - Proceeds from repayments olf trading securities 1,354 ~-

-, Loss on dhsposaﬂl of fixed assets

(Gain) loss ‘on sale of foreclosed real estate >~ -

~, . Gain on sale of loans held for sale
-~ (]Increase) decrease in assets’

- Disbursements for origination of loans

Proceeds from sales of loans ’

~ Accrued interest and dividend recewablle y

" Prepaid expenses and other assets

B ‘Deferred loan fees coll]lecfted net’ of deferred costts
Increase (decrease) in Lizbilities ) .
“Accrued expenses and other liabilities g

- Income taxes payable '

mcumred

Amortization of trading security premiurmns ~38

* Unrealized Toss (gain) on trading securities N 11 580
.Realized loss (gain) on sale of investments ; (]135) 451
R Realized (gain) loss on sale of moﬁgaged-backed securities, 70y ()]
Amortization of investment secunty premiums - \ I 1,467 624

- Amortization of mortgage-backed securities - o ~ - v 264 224
 Amortization of deferred fees. =~ . e (238) 1z7

R Discount accretion net' of premmm amomzaxtnon - ‘ ., 108 80

- N I 7/
(14)
(2,466)

- (45)
N - (4,335)

) (249924)
/ 245175 121,339
P ,(284) (1,045)
- (344) 124
44 - v (64)
(2,544) >

o 55

(]Hl7 037)

2,772

T $ 11,034 % 7,635

Net cash provided by operating activities

\
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Greater Atlantic Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries
- Comsolidated Statements of Cash Flows — (C@ﬁnti@mg&d)} |

Y

IS

' Years ended September 30,

2001 -

‘200®

- 4 - B P

Cash flow from investing activities =~~~

(in thousands )

$ (76,075)

‘ L7

.- Net increase in loans . ' ~ - $ ’,(3]1,8414) ,
" Purchases of premises and equipment L 2,022 ° . (3,08])
Proceeds from sales of foreclosed real estate 217 310
Purchases of investment securities ‘o, (91,454) (30,006), -
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 11,803 . 15,626
- Proceeds from repayments of investment securities - 16,221 7,366 \“ :
Purchases of momgage-backed securities (14,898) (29,169) .
. Proceeds, from sale of mONgage—backed securities oo © 6,307 - 1,960
.- Proceeds from repayments of mortgage-backed securities S 16,292 13,549
Purchases of FHLB steck - , e (1,650) - (4,270}
Proceeds from sale of FHLB stock c RS 1,300- - 2,723
Acquisition, net of cash acquired - : - L (1,379)
" Net cash used in investing activities - (89,728)  (102,446)
Cash flow from financing activities ) )
Net increase in deposits o Y { 41,452 ~ 59,380
Net advances fromFHLB - ) , 28,400 © 8,450
Net borrowings on reverse repurchase agreements 6 587 " 30,995.
Increase in advance payments by borrowers for[ taxes and insurance —(44) -
Net cash provided by financing activities 76,395 , 98,825
Increase in cash and cash equivalents ‘ (2,299) |, 4,014
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of period 5,717 1,703
$ 5,717

Cash and cash equivalents, at end of period

- $ 3,418

y

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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* Greater Atlantic Fmanczal Corp. and Subszdzanes 1 s ,:' o
N@&es to @@m@hda&ed Finaneial Staﬁem«ems N - .

1. @uﬂmmary @ﬁ' Sngmﬁmm Am@wn&mg P@Hmes : :
~ ) S S ' R

7

’ Na&um@ﬁ'@pemmns ' L R - e N

~ Gareater Atlanti¢ Financial- -Corp. (GAFC or ﬁ;he “Company”) isa bank holdlmg company whose o

" principal acrmvmy is the ownership and management of Greater Atlantic Bank (GAB or “the Bank™), and

- Pnnupﬁeg of: C@M@hdam@m B o h

- ehmmated in.consolidation. __ ; -

S~

its wholly owned sulbsndﬂary, Greater Atlantic MONgage Corporation (GAMC}: ‘The Bank originates
commercial, mortgage and consumer loans and receives deposits from customers llocatted primarily in -

Virginia, Washmgton, D.C. and Maryﬂamd -The Bank opemtes under a federal bank charter-and provndles

fuM ‘banking services., \ ~ } “. -

/ GAMC was mcorpom&ed as.a sepamte emnty on June 11, ]1998 amd begam mdcpendem operamons
on September/Il 1998. GAMC is involved primarily in the origination and sale of single-family mortgage
loans and, 10 a lesser extent, multi- family resndemna]l amdl second: mortgage loans. GAMC also ongmates
loans for the Bank’s pomfoho I ;

- 2 N .
. : / . - - P ‘
The consohdated ﬁnancnaﬁ statements include the accounts of GAFC and its whoMy owned

subsidiaries, GAB and GAMC. All sngmﬁcam mtercompany accounts and tmnsacuons have been

N . N e -

Rmsk andl Uncertainties : - T

- . - co SN
In its normal course of busmess, the Compzmy encounters two significant types of risk: economic
and regulatory. There are three main components of economic risk: interest rate risk, credit risk and
market risk: The Company is subject to.interest rate risk tothe degree that its interest-bearing habnhues
mature or reprice more rapidly, or on a different basis, than its interest-earning assets. Credit risk i the

~

risk-of default on the Company's loan pomfoho that results from the ‘borrowers' mabnhty or unwillingness
o make contractually required payments. Market ns]k reflects changes in the value of collateral

underlying loans receivable and the valuation of real estate held Iby the Company. The detérmination of
theallowance for loan losses and the valuation of real estate are based on estimates that are particularly
susceptible to sngmﬁcmt changes in the economic environment and market conditions. Managemem
believes that, as of September 30, 2001 and September 30, 2000, the allowance for loan losses and

“valuation of real estate ‘are adequate based on information currently available. A worsening or protracted’

- Qamc@mmm@m of Clrednt Rnsk

Vs

economtic decline-would i increase the likelihood of losses due to credit and market risks and couﬂd create
the need for subs&amﬂa}l addnrtnona]l loan loss.reserves. ‘See dlscussnon of regulatory maiters in Note 13.

e L J e

!

The Company s pnmamy business activity is wnth customers located in Malryllamd ergnma and the —

_ * District of Columbia. The Company primarily originates residential loans to customers throughout these

areas, most of who are residents ]loca}l to the Company s business }iocatnons The Company has a
diversified loan portfolio consnstmg of residential, commercial and consumer loans. Commercial and
consumer loans generaMy provnde for higher interest rates and, shorter terms, however stch loans have a. -

hngher degree’ of credit risk. Managemem monitors all Hoans, mc]ludmg, when possible, making : R

Al

inspections of the properties, maintaining cunrem operating statements, and performing net realizable
value calculations, with allowances for losses established as necessary to properly reflect thq\ value of the’
properties. Managemem believes the current loss aliowances are sufﬁc/lem to cover the credit risk
estimated to exist at Sepﬁember 30, 20011 o , e TR

.
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!




Greater Atlantic Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries .
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - co R
Investment Securfties - C o / - S .
Investment securities, which the Company has the intent and ability to hold to maturity, are
carried at amortized cost.: The amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts are recorded on the \
level yield (interest) method, over the period from the date of purchase to maturity.. When sales do occut,
. gains and losses are recognized at the time of sale and the determination of cost of securities sold is based”
upon the specific identification method. Investmient securities which the Company intends to hold for
"' indefinite periods of time, use for asset/]lnabnhty management or that are to be sold in response to changes
in interest rates, prepayment risk, the need to increase regulatory capital or other similar factors are
classified as available-for-sale and carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses excluded from -
earnings and reported in a separate component of stockholders’ equity. If a sale does occur, gains and
losses are recognized asa component of earnings at the time.of the sale. The amortization of premiums .
and accrettnon of discounts are: recorded on the level yield (mterest) method. .

_ ]Invesfﬁmem securities that are bought and held principally for the purpose of seMmg rfhem in the |
near term are classified as trading securities and reported at fair value, with umeaxhzed gains and Tosses
mc}ludedl in earnings. g ‘ Sy

]L@aums amaﬂ Aﬂﬂ@\wame for Loan IL@SS@S

- “Loans receivable are stated at unpaid prircipal ba]l;mces, net of unearned dnscounts resu]ltmg from _
add-on interest, participation or whole-loan interests owned by otthe)rs undﬂsbursedl loans in process, - i
deferred loan fees, and allowances for loan lgsses. T

. “Loans are p]lalced on non-accrual.status when the principal or interest is past due mdfe than 90 ‘/
days or when in management’s opinion, collection of pnncnpa}l andl interest is not likely to be made in
. accordance with a loan’s contractual terms, '

- The allowance for loan losses provndes for the risk of llosses inherent in the Jlendmg process The
allowance for loan losses is based on pericdic reviews and anaﬂyses of the loan portfolio which include
consideration of such factors as the risk rating of individual credits, the size and diversity of the portfolio,
economic conditions, prior loss experience and results of periodic credit reviews of the portfolio. The .

~ allowance for loan losses is increased by provisions for loan losses charged against income and reduced .
by charge-offs, net of recoveries. In management’s judgment, the allowance for loan losses is consnderedl
. adequate to absorb losses inherent in the loan portfolio at Septemberr 30, 2001.. :

X The Company considers a loan to be impaired if i itis probable that they will be unable to collect
all amounts due (both principal and interest) accordlmg to the contractual terms of the loan agreemem
When a loan is deemed impaired, the Company computes the present value of the loan's future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. As an expedient, creditors may account for impaired loans
at the fair value of the collateral or at the observable market price of the loan if one exists. If the present
value is less than the carrying value of the loan, a valuation allowance is recorded. For collateral
dependent loans, the Company uses the fair value of the coMamemﬂ less estimated cos&s to sell, on a
“discounted basis, to measure impairment. ‘ P g

i

Momgage loans originated and nmended for sale are cammedl at the lower of cost or esmmaftedl
_market value in fthe aggregalte Net umeahzed losses are recognized in a-valuation aMowance by charges -
. to mcome . - . P

/‘ \
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. Greatezr Atlannc F manaal Cmp and Subszdzarzes . B (
N@ﬁ@s to C@msanhdlafcedi Fmamnaﬂ Staﬁemems

M@Jﬁlgage L@am Hmwmmeg Duscwmﬁs aumcdl Premiums

- Imerest income on ]loems is recorded.on the accrual methodl Dﬂscounms and premiums rellafﬁmg to v

" mortgage loans purchased are deferred and amortized against or accreted into income over the estimated
lives of the loans using the level yne]ldl (interest) methed~ Accmaﬂ of interest is discontinued and an
allowance for uncollected interest is established and chaurged to interest income for the full amount of
accwed interest recenva.b}le on loans, whichare de]lmquem fora penod of 50 days or more. |

voob

JL@aum @mgmmﬂ@m and C@mmmmtﬂmm Fees )

] J . s -~ -
NI ]Loaum crigination and commitment fees and certain mcremema]l direct loan ongmatnom costcs are
Dbeing deferred with the net amount being amortized as-an adjustment.of the related loan’s yield. The

Company is amortizing those amounts over the contractual life of the related ]loans as adjusted for

anucnpamedl prepayments usmg current and: pasft paymem Urendls R ;

N
~ i

M@}r&gage ]L@amz Sales and Semcmg . ~ ' LT ) .

. The Compamy originates and sells loans emdl pamcnpatmg interest in. loans generally without

-, retaining servicing rights. Loans are sold to provide the Company with additionial funds and to generate

gams from mortgage banking opemuons Loans ongmatedl foxr 'sale are camed at the lower of cost or
market. When a loan and the Ire]lated servncmg aure sold the Compamy recognizes any gain or loss at the

\
Mmeofsaﬂe N IR . \ ( ;

When. servncmg is retained on a ]loem rtham is so]ldl the, Compaumy recognizes al gam or ]loss ‘vased on
the present value of the_ difference between the average constant rate of interest it receives, ad]usted for a
normal servicing feé, and the yield it must pay to the purchaser of the loan over the estimated remaining
“life of the loan. Any resulting net premium is deferred and amortized over the estimated life of thé loan
using a method approxnmatmg the level yield (mfcerest) method. Loans of $162,000 and $16.4 million
were sold with servicing rights retained during the years ended Septemlber 30, 2001 and September 30
2000, Irespecmvelly The Compmy adlso sells paxmcmpamm interests in I{oans tha.t it services.

-

~-

Premises am@i Eqwnpmem L

Premises and eqmpmem are recorded at cost. Deprecnatmn is compmed on the stranghm-lme
method over useful lives ranging from five to ten years. Leasehold 1mp1rovemen¢s are capitalized and
. ‘amortized using the straight-line method over the life of the re]lated ﬂease _ ; N

F@mcﬂ@sm Real Estate. . S ~ S
N B

S Real estate acqmrred through forec]losure is recorded at the ﬂower off cost or fauur value less
estimated selling costs. Subsequent to the date of foreclosure, valuation adjustments are made, if

s

- -required, to the lower of cost or fair value less esmmated selling: costs. . Costs related to ho]ldlmg the real

estate, net of related income, are reflected in opemuons when incurred. Recogmmon of gains on sale of
real estate is dependem upon the transaction meetmg certain cmena re]larrmg to the nature of the ‘property
sold aumdl the terms of the sale.” ” « S

v
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Greater Atlantic Fmanczal Corp and Subsidiaries ‘ o : ' ‘ i
N@ﬂ:@s to C@ms«bﬂmﬂaﬁeaﬂ Finamcial Statements R - .

Income Taxes

Income taxes are calculated using the liability method specified by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. The net deferred tax asset is reduced, if
necessary, by a valuation allowance for the amount of any tax beneﬁts that, based on avanﬂab]le evidence,

~ are not expected to be realized (See Note 11).

Casﬂﬂ and Cash Eqrmnv&ﬂemﬂs‘ I . ' , o o7

N

, The Company considers cash and interest beanng deposms in orcher banks as cash and. cash
eqmvaﬂems for purposes of preparing the statement of cash flows. =~ - ~

Use of Estimates im fﬂhe Pr@pamm@m of Fummcuaﬂ S&aﬁemems i

Ve

The prepammon of financial statements in conformity with gememMy accepted accoummg
‘pringiples reguires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

assets and liabilities and disclosure of commgem assets and liabilities at the date of the financial -

statements and the reported amounts of revenues ‘and expenses dunng the reporting period. Actual results
‘could differ from those estimates. :

Comprehensive Income ( ‘

Statemnent of Financial Accounting Standards No 130, “Reporting Comprehenswe Income”
(“SFAS 130", establishes standards for the reporting and dnspﬂay of comprehensive income, its
components and accumulated balances. Comprehensive income is defined to include all changes in
equity except those resuhmg from investments by owners and distributions to owners. Among other
disclosures, SFAS 130 requires that all items that are rrequnred to be recognized under current accounting
standards as components of comprehensive income be reported in a financial statemnent that is displayed
with the same prominence as other financial statements. SFAS 130 is effective for financial statements
for periods beginning after December 15, 1997. Presently, the Company’s comprehensive income and
loss is from unrealized gains and [osses on certain investment securities. :
Stock-Based C@mpemmﬂ@m [ : ’ B

’

The Company measures compensation cost for stock options using the intrinsic value method
prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25, which requires compensamom expense to be recorded on the date of
grant only if the current market price of the umdeﬂymg stock exceeds the exercise price. The Company
‘provides pro forma net income and pro forma earnings per share disclosures for employee stock option
grants as if the fair-value-based method-defined in SFAS 123, “Accoumtmg for Stock-Based .

Compensation,” had been apphed See N ote 14 for the pro forma net mcome and pro forma earnings per -
 share disclosures. : -

-

Recﬂasgnﬁmm@ms

N

Cemam prior year amounts have been reclassified to’ conform to the current method of .
]presentamon These reclassifications have no effect on the results of operations previously reported.

3.
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‘2.\Acqms1tlon":\ - o : o O P Lo
- On August 22, 2000, the: Company completed the acquisition of certam assets of Domlmon
o Savings Bank, FSB, Front Royal, Virginia. The acquisition is being accounted for as a purchase- and
~ accordingly, the financial statements include assets and liabilities acquired at fair value and results of .
operatlons from the date of acqulsltlon Shareholders of Dominion were paid approximately $1.1 mﬂhon
: in cash, resulting-in goodwill of approximately $1.4 million, which is bemg amortized, on a straight-line
“basis over 15 years. Since the Dominion acqmsntmn occurred on August’ 22, 2000, its impact upon the

fCompany s consohdated results of operations for the ﬁscal year ended September 30 2000 was not

o 'sngmﬁcant ;‘ , . 0 ‘ ‘ , P 7 R
U - The followmg unaudited pro forma mformatlon presents the/results of operatlons of the - ‘
Company as if the acquisition had occurred on October i, 1999 o . . o
/ Year ended: September 30, ‘ 2000 e :
. - “ N L - (iwrthousands)) / -

Total interest income

f

$20811 . - .

C o T< Netloss S > $ (4809)
Dih}ted 10ss per cbmmon/Share o T8 (1.60) )

N . \ N . , / /s -

. These pro forma results of operations have been prepared for comparatnve purposes only and do
not purport to be'indicative of the results of operations which actually would have resulted had the
) acqmsntnon occurred on the date indicated, or Wthh may result i in the future o :
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Greater Atlantic Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries -
Notes to Consolidated Fimancial Statements N
3. Imvestments .
\ Available-for-Sale, September 30, 2001, \ P B
- ’ / | Amortized Ufezsi;d Cross
N | 7 / Cost " Gains . \U?Ifs::l::d %ﬁﬁt«
» - Investment securities - ) - (in thousands) ‘
A SBA notes - e 8106124 1 $112 '$442  $10579 ~
| CMOs S S 6971 58 . 35 6,994
- Corporate debt securities L 974 51 - 1,025
o 114,069 . 221 477 0 113813, .
Mortgage-backed securities> - : - » L ~
FNMA notes . 19,059 59 - 98 " 19,020
‘GNMA notes i} 1,797 - 1’ 10 1,788
. FHLMC notes” . 11,770 . 21 46 11,745
k ~ 2 32,626 81 154 32,553
$ 146,695 $ 302 $631  $146,366
" Held-to-Maturity, September 30, 2001 L )
’ - ., Cross Gross o
v ' . o Amortized  Unrealized  Unrealized - parker
) : Cost Gains - Losses . - Value
Investment securities B (in thousands) - i
SBA notes ° , $ 16,460 $ - $504  $15956
. Corporate debt securities 1,028 . - - 38 . 991
\ - « : . 17,489 - 542 16,947
Mortgage-backed securities o ' ’ ‘ ,
FNMA notes.” . . ' T 2,974 49 - 3,023
FHLMCnotes © -+« 2276 L7 : 2,303
~ T * T 4 5,250 76 - 5326
. ) $ 22,739 $ 76 $542 .. $22,273
B . 7 " - > N
. \ .
,l'\ / Y) -
‘ B / N P
’ 34 ’
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Greaterfi\tlantzc ananczal Corp and Subszdmnes P ' - R
g N@ﬁ@s to @@m@hdamd Fmamnaﬂ Statements = - P \ '
Available- f@hSazie, Sepztember 36, 2@@@ N p
s ~ BN P
‘ ‘ Gross Gross
Amortized ~ Unrealized  Unrealized “Market
| L v _ Cost’ " Gains - -~ Losses Value
, Investment securities , . 2 . (inthousands) o
<" Bquity securities. - o $:2157 . %8 $ 73§ 2,171
‘“SBAmotes . A 39,967 <. 480 39,487
. FHLBmotes ,° - PR v 24. 976
" CMOs =y 3410 7 © 3 55 3,358
~ , 'Corporate debt securities o L9e7 ¢ - . 43 1,924
S I " 48501 %0 ;675 . 47916
~ Mortgage-backed securities_- T e ey 0T L.
“FNMA notes \ T 26,880 ~ . 47 329 26,555
. GNMA notes R Co1430 - < - 726 1,404
. FHLMC notes B L1772 2. 6%. | 10,705
™~ T o7 - 3908 7 6 . 424 38664
) g y7 , ~ $87,583 $96  $1,099 $86,580 " . -
- Held-to-Maturisy, September 30, 2600° VT R
L v I [N ViGress , ~  Gross ]
s ) Amortlzed " Unrealized - Unrealized \
o, ‘ T N Market
) : / Cost ~ _ Gains Tosses Value
- Imvestment securities~ T " (in thousands) ) \
¢ SBA notes $ 19878 7§ - '$696  $19,182
Corporate motes .~ .., ’ 1037 0 - - 72 7 965
' \ o0 > 20915 . - 768 - 20,147 .
Mortgage-backed securities N Rt U o . \
FNMA notes - . 3868 - -155 3,713
/ ‘ \ : SNy -
- FHLMC notes o 2817 T - 8 2,739
- = , 6685 . - 233 6452
2 N " $ 27,@0@» oo %1001 L 8 26,599’
The wenghtedl average interest mte on mvestmems was 7 04% and 8. 6]1% forr the yeaurs ended
Septtemlber 30, 2001 and 2000, respecuvelly . ) " - \
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Greater Atlantzc Fmanczal Corp and Subszdzarzes A‘ - -
- Notes to Consolidated Financial S&aﬁi@m@n&s R R
Trading Acuw&nes ‘ ~ | .
Tradmg assets at famr value, consnstt of the ]foMowmg o
_ September 30, . - o o L2001 . 2000 -
o : o o o ' (iri thousands) ~
FHLB notes B . ) T $ - $ 11946 : N
Mortgage-backed securities R , 11,3}12 20,820
R o e T -$ 1,312 - $22,766
; The net (losses) gains on trading activities included in earnings are as follows:
- Years ended September 30, - S ;2001 2000,
T N : - (in thousands)
FHLB notes - ’ ' 8 - 8 (54
Mortgage-backed securities . ‘ ; S (11 - (526)

‘$(M) - $(580)

~

Proceeds from the sale offavaﬂab}le for sale securities were $}l8 1 million and $}15 1 million for
the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Gross realized gains were $194,000 for the
-yeax ended September 30, 2001 compared to gross losses of $1.0 million for the year ended September

* 30, 2000. The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities at Septtember 30, 2001, by contractual
mammy, are as fo}lllows .

" Available- f@r-Saley Sepz.fember 30 20@]]

s N

N , :
‘ ~ ' D v © Amortized Fair,
o .~ Cost Value
o § ‘ i (in thousands)
Amounts maturmg in: " . : T
One year or ]less o o A RS
. After one year through five years s / o 1,308 1,305
After five years tthrough ten years - LT o 1,440 1,461
. After ten years - 111,321 ~ 7 111,047 .
Mortgage-backed securities | 32,626 32,553 -
S B , — ~$ 146,695 146,366
-’ \

A
e
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Greater. Atlantic Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries ‘ -
Notes to Consclidated Finaricial Statements’ \’ g ,
«‘ [N ¥ g \/\i ' X P o~ -
- Held-to-Maturity, September 30, 2001 ' " ‘ ‘T
| | 7 . ‘Amortized - Fair, /
o T Cost Value
N o - ~(in thousands)
Amounts maturing in: - ’ A . - ;
One year or less , . o N s 2 -, 8 ) .
/ After one year through five years - \ ‘ l, 1,708 1,048
. After five years through ten" years e - B 1,459 0 1,395,
After ten years® N T - o o v14322 0 13,904
Mortgage backed secunues " SV . 75,250 5,326
N C . _S:T5 s

Acrcua]l matumues may dnffcr from commcxtua]l maturities because issuers may have the right to

call or prepay obhgauons with or without call or prepayment penaltnes .
4, ]Loams Re«ceﬂvabﬂe - N ' A R N
]Loans recelvable consists of the foﬂowmg/ .

Lo September 30;,_ L - . 2001 v 20000 ‘
N - : - (in thousands) : . Ot \\
Mortgage loanss ©~ - 1 - R { ~ ‘

Single-family . : . Y DR 99,232 $ 84, 354
Multi-family: v ¢ S “ 634 1,053, !
" Construction | | e i 19,110 14,537
o Commercial real estate. T e 17,977 . 10,765
\ Land loans. T : K 5,431 3,158 .
Total mortgage loans . ) 142,384 113,867
" Commercial loans i , ;oo - 1,675 11,221 -
. Consumer Idans , 137,372 21,887 -
* -Totalloans =~ = . - ST oo L 191,431 146,975
. Due borrowers on )loans-m process SO e L (11,756) - T (7,953)
Deferred loan fees - . . - 245"~ 149
Allowance for loan-losses ) - o @) (7655
Unearned (discounts) premium  ° ‘ D Y (109)

A ' ¢ - o Lo (12,145) . (8,678)
A 1 $179,286 - $138297

‘... Loansheld for sale- = . - © . 814683 - $ 5599 .

, . Loans receivable, net C ] - 164,603 -« 132,698 .
| S o B $ 179,286 $ 138,297 =

" Loans held forsale are all single-family momgage,iogns;/;, ) v i
‘ / / 4 ' ¥
37\ - }‘ \\ -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statéements - . S \ -

S

The activity in allowance for loan losses is summarized as follows:

September 30, L 2001 © 20007
) L R _ (in thousands)
Balance, beginning ‘, .- 8765 .. 8590
Provision for loan losses. X /o s T 13
Dominion reserves - . S : 100 // . 225
Charge-offs =~~~ . - ST URPE & U TR (% )
Recoveries s 21 . -
. ' Balance, ending - : ' $ 810. $ 765 ~

Ve

The amount of ﬂoans serviced for others tcotaﬂed $16.0 million and $18. ]l mn]lhon ds of Septemlber:
30 2001 and September 3@ 2000, respectively.

The allowance for uncollected interest, esttab]lnshed for momgage loans whnch are delinguent for a
-period of 90 days or more, amounted to, $12,000 and $3,000 as of September 30, 2001 and September 30,
2000, respectively. This is the entire amount of interest income that would have been recorded in these
periods under the contractual terms of such loans. Principal balances of non-performing loans related to
reserves for uncollected interest rcotcaﬂedl $506, 000 andl $194,000 as of Sepmember 30, 2001, and September
30, 2000, lrespecuve]ly . N

L - P
N N

5. Accrued Interest and Duvu«ﬂemd}s Re@ewaﬁ»ﬂe Ly
~ Accrued interest and dividends rexcenvab]le consnst of the fo]l]lowmg

September 30, R 2001 2000
, C e - ' (in thousands)
“Investments » $ 1,655 $ 1,463
. Loans receivable ~ 1,059 ¢ 951 . \
‘ Accmed dividends on FHLB stock . S 63 80 .
; ’ $2,777 $ 2,494 :
AR / 4 - ; )

A

6. Premises and Equipment S L

Premises and equnpmem consists of the foﬂllowmg

2001

: September 30 . 2000
~ b "/ /(in thousands). .
" Furniture, ﬁxmres and equnpmem - $ 4,170 $3,172
Leasehold improvements : ’ 2,723 . 2,225
Land 1,648 1,137 ;
| - 8,541 6,534
Less: Allowances for depreciation and amortization - 2,191 1,675
. $6,350  $4,859

N

\
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Greater Atlantic Financial Corp and Subszdzaries N o ;
Notes to C@ms@h«rﬂmeﬁﬁ ]Fmamemaﬂ Statements / . .
N . - - . -
‘7 F@m«:ﬂ@s@@ﬂ Reaﬂ Esmae oo ( - o
§ ]Forecllosed rea]l estate.is summanzedl as foMows: ;
Septem%er 30, S \2@011 2000
] X ’ . - ) b . (m thousands) .
- Real estate acquired through settiement of loans  ~ =~ $ - $ 172
» s i - It - -/ <
s The cost of operations for foreclosed real consists of the following: - A
. September30, =~ - A i 2001 2000
C S . “ T (ir thousands)
‘ ‘ o \ : N
Incomes ‘ , PR R >
Gain on sale ) 2 ~ v, $45 $14
AN -\ ' N \
: A N i ]

\ Expense: oL . \ o R ‘ !
Loss on sale™ - CT e - N -
Provision for (recovery 010 lloss . o T - - -
'- Operating expenses ‘ - - v N 3. 10

) ~ R o . i / 3 e
"7 Gain L S Co Y 842 $ 4
‘// \ ~ ‘\ ( )‘ ) ~
/ Acftnvnty m the a.}l]lowance for losses on fon'ec}losed real estate is summamzed aS\foHows
September 30, ~ - ” -0 2001 . ZOOO ‘
) ‘ . \ o ‘(in thousands) v
/ N — .
Ba.]lance, beginning .. , / $ - L, %5
_Provision (Irecovery) charged toincome =~ - . v -7 -
Chanrge -offs, net of recovenes : . G- S ()
Balance, ending - s T Ts .
1 -~ - — \“ \
- — \ -
T Yoo / v .~ ~
S . ) .
~ v /
- N
- 5 - v - .
. T . . N . s - ~ / -
o \ \ K \
o , s
N vV . ~
- - } N BN
{ .
N s / Ay N
\ N \\
\ - - “
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- Greatér Atlantic Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries' . ’ S
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .
" 8. Deposits - g
‘ Deposits are summarized as follows: ‘
September 30, 2001 - B
Ranges of
p , . Contractual
) Amount Interest Rates - / %
‘ . (in thousands) |
Savings accounts - , $ 4641 000 -3.25% 2.@%
NOW/money market accounts o 71,229 0.00-3.63% - C31.0°
Certificates of deposit . ‘ 0 147,365 3.54 - 9.00% 64.1
Non-interest bearing demand deposits T 6,747 0.00% 29.
' $ 229,982 100.0%
September 30,2000 )
' - ‘Ranges-of -
- , . - Contractual .
N Amount . - Interest Rates %
. (in thousands) A !
Savings accounts "$ 5,808 - 2.50-3.25% 3.1%
NOW/money market accounts 46,263 0.00-6.11% 246
* Certificates of deposit . } 131,893 4.50 - 6,50% 70.0 -
Non-interest bearing demand deposits . - 4,423 0.00% 2.3
L : ' $ 188,387 o 100.0%
h o0 | ]
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h N@&es to C@nmhda&e«i Financial Statemems - oo e ~
N . N ~ oL e o \> ' -
’ - Certificates of deposn as of Sepmember 30 2001 mature as follows: = N - L
. T " Years énding September 30, S SR PR K '
| AN R (in thousand\s)v_/ ’ o 7 o
. \\2?002 R B : - $114,344  ~.
2003 770 RS Sy s 26688
S 2004 .. L T 3ass
S 2005 o, . - T o 1095
., - 2006 4 oo T , T X <
e ‘/ . ] ’ . /' ] < v " ’ N : \ \, i VoL .\/"“" ) \; i \\‘;.$ 147,365
‘ 7 Tnterest expense on deposit :aecounzts cﬁnsistg of the fo]ilowing/;, \ L y L
v o . Years ﬂeihdedlSep'te(nber 30, o - o 20001 ' 2000
/ “  ' e - I . T “ (in thousands) - ;l
o~ NOW/money market accoupts. - 3 .Y % 2,744 0 . $1,773
S ’ SN ' < : ‘ ;
- Savings accounts s o~ 2 4/ - T 136 y 40
O Cemlﬁqateg ofdeposit -~ . T - 8749 5,855 ~
. ~ ‘y - ! ) s ) R o :, o $ ]1,629 \'/ $ 7’668 -/\ N
R v / L L ) A - )
B Deposnts, mcludmg cemﬁcates of deposm with ba]lances in excess of $100, OOO totaﬂed $52. 2-

S

million and $28. 7 million at September 30, 2001 amd September 30, 200() respectwelly B

7
\

L V9, Defen'ed C@mpensatmn Plan

.

y On, October 30, 1997, the Compzmy adopted a deferred compensation plan. Under the defened
compensatlon pllan, an employee may ;lect to part1c1pate by directing that all or part of his or her N
compensation be credited to a deferral account. The election must be made prior to the beginning of the

~ calendar year. The deferral account bears interest ‘at 6%-per year. Thé amounts credited to the defértal
-account are payable in prefemred stock or cash at the election of the Board of Directors on the date the

. Company announces a change in control or the date three yea.rs from the date the pamcnpamt elects to

participate in the deferred compensation plan. The liability associated wuh the p]lan was $0and

N $500 000 at September 30 2001 and 2000, respecnvely o s _ - T
. N
J
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Greater Atlantic Financial Cozrp and Subszdmnes ; - ‘ S
Notes to C@msm»ﬂnqﬂat@dl Financtal Statements :

-

MI) Adlvames H*‘mmm Federal Home L@am Bamnk and @fdln@n‘ Borrowings C f

~  The Bank has $36.7 million credit avaﬂabﬂuy as of September 30, 2@0]1 from the ]Fedemﬂ Home
Loan Bank of Atlanta (JFHJLB) which it uses to fund loans originated by Greater Atlantic. Mortgage

Corporation. Any advances in excess of $10 million are required to be collateralized with ehgﬂb]le ,
securities. The credit availability is at the dlnscreuon of the FHLB. : :

The following table sets forth information regam‘dmg the Bank’s bomrbwed fundls: h

CoT e 2000

" At or for the"/'years ended September 30,

FHLB advances:

“Weighted average‘imterest rate at endl\vof period

VIR

~

- (dollars in thousands)

6.62% ‘

e

' Average balance outstanding "( o - "$60,784 $ 55,691
- Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end during the penod ) - 74,500 76,800
Balance outstanding at-end of period i R + 74,500 46,100 ~
Weighted average interest rate during the period ; 5.59% 6 14%

' Weighted average interest rate at end of pericd . 447% 6.33%

_ Reverse repurchase agreements: ’ - T R :
Average balance outstanéing / ‘ 43217 31,100
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end during the penodl 53,279 39,605
Balance cutstanding at end of period " 43,323 o .36,736
Weighted average interest rate during the period 5.14% N 6.45%

B 3.32%

. The Bank has pledged certain investments with carrrymg vaﬂues of $89 3 mﬂhon at Sepftember 30
2001, to coMaterahze advances fromthe FHILB. A , \

IFnIrst/ moertgage loans in the amount of $27 8 mﬂhon are avaﬂablle to be pﬂedged as coMatem]l for

N

the advances at Seprtember 30, 20@1
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Greater Atlantic Financial Corp. and Subszdzanes Ll §
‘Notes to ﬁC@MS@Maﬁed Financiel Statements - ~ , . b
i /\ ‘ ) /./ B \\ - -~ - - B ’ 7 ) / -
M Income Taxes . = - UNEY ’
, The fo]l]lowmg is a summary of the income tax ]prowsnon\(beneﬁt)
Years.ended September 30, - \ / ) 2001 2000 i
A T 7 - N ‘ — ‘ - - — R - T
¢l R < R )‘ (in thousands) . . RO
R Current — Federal benefit EE T .8 - -
y S State benefit R o N
‘ . R o . ~ ' ~
S / - -, Deferred = Federal and state (béﬁeﬁm)\prdvision o - (600)
o T ’ X B ~ - L \‘ B N )/’ _ $‘, " oo $(6@@) B
N J o ~ N / - N /, ;
~ ' ' The provision for income. taxes differs ﬁ'om the amoum of i mcome tax détermined by appﬂymg the
S apphcab]le U.S. statutory federal i income tax rate mo pre-tax income as a result of the foHowmg differences:
\ o Years ended September 30 : L 2001 4‘ 2000 .~
-, — N \ \ [ . “
» - . N S S, M (in thousands)
-/, -/ Federal tax beneﬁtl R ~o 8388 $ (1,441 -
' State fax benefit DN ‘ N 3 ) Q12 -
/ - - (][ncrease) decrease i in beneﬁt resuhmg from roon o "
5, Change in the valuation allowance . ) A o~ 7282 ©1,233 .
. ‘Permanent differences ~ - . R 25 . 020 N
; Change in effective deferred tax rate ' , h y - . 7
F . \ . - . R
) ‘ Other N Y ST Ty 98 = (200) ° <
Income tax benefit " v “$ 7 - T _$ (600)
— , _ . " ‘
N g ] 7 . b / - Y
v L \
y ~ - /’ . “ ’j\ ’
s o/ S ya
/ N
. S \ \\ 4 e
i )\ RN /' ., -~ J
- - \ / e
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\ GrEatenAtlant@c Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries
Notes w @@m@ﬁﬁ@ﬂaﬁ@d Financial Statememnts

Sngmﬁcam componems of the Company s defen'edl tax assets and habﬂmes are as ]fo]l]lows:

> " September.30, - D L 2001 20@@
| . : . < 7 (m- thousands) |
P Defermd tax assefs S \'/ . - K
Net operating loss carryforwards .~ < . ~ $3,605 $ 2,603
Aliowance for loan losses S - . 7319 226 .
Loans held for sale s / 16 18
. Core deposit intangible =~ 67 67
. Deferred loan fees LR 163 - .98
oy Compensation payable = -~ S ;o 226
) Net discounts on secondl fmrusts - 4 ‘21 3
IR ‘Other - o . - 46 o33
"~ Total deferred tax assets N i 4,237 3,303
Deferred tax labilities L / , \
: FHLB stock dividends. 39 . 39
- ) Tax over book depreciation 150 T 44 -
~ ' Total deferred tax liabilities . 189 . 83 -
Net deferred tax assets 04,048 3,220
Less: Valuation allowance 2,528 1,700
Total | $1,520 - $1,520

N

' Mzmagemem has prfovnded a vaﬂua&nom allowance for net deferred tax assets, as mhey are unable to
determine the timing of the generatﬂon of future taxable i mcome : :

At September 30, 2001, the Company has net operatmg loss camyforwards for federal i nncomc tax’ - -

purposes of approximately $9.1 nm]lhon which expire in the years 2006 to 2020. Asa result of the

change in ownership of the Bank, approximately $1.7 million of the total net operratmg loss can'yforwardls

are sub]ecm to an amnuall usage llﬂmntatmon of approxnmattelly $114,000. .

N




Greater Atlannc F znanczal Corp and Subsidiaries N SN
Notes u’no Consondnmaﬂ Funanmnﬁ Smm}rnenﬁs « S B .

i oy -
\ . RN N - \ -

v [ ) oo~

- 12, Comnnﬁmenﬁs and Conﬁnngenmes S « -t \

OnlJ nﬂy 28, 1999, First Guaranty Moﬁgage Conporranon filed a complamt against the Company

and it’s wholly owned subsidiary GAB and GAMC in Circuit-Court of Arlington, Virginia. "This ~

complaint alleged lblreach of contract and related claims against these three -companies and employees of -
GAMC who formerly Were employed at First Guaranty. First Guaranty aMeged that GAMC, GAB and
GAFC wrongfully | interfered wnh the business of First Cuaranty’s Frederick; Maryland office by hmng

- the employees of that office. First Guauranty sought approximately $5,000,000-in compensatory and

$20,000,000 in punitive damages In 2000, the Company,entered intc-a settiement, which resolved this
claim. The resulting provnsnon for litigation loss of $1.25. million has been reflected in-other operating )
expenses in the accompanynng statement of operanons for the year endledl September 30, 2000

The Company isa pzn'ty to ﬁnancna}l mstnnments with’ off balance sheet risk in fthe normal course
of business to meet the financing needs of ifs customers and fo reduce its own exposure to'fluctuations in
interest rates. _These ﬁnancml instruments include commitments to extend credit, standby letters of
credit, and financial guarantees. Those instruments involve;.to varying ‘degrees, elements’ of credit and
interest raterisk in excess of the amourit recognized in the balance sheeit The contract or notional -

_amounits of those instruments reflect the extent of mvolvement the Compa.ny has in ]pamcn]lanr classes of
financial nnstmments AN . oo, /

. -~ ~

N The Company's exposure to credit loss’in. the event of nonperfonnance by the other pa.ny to the’

financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby lettérs-of credit and financial
gnaurantees 'written is Jrepresented by the contractual notional. amount of those instruments. The Company,

- uses the same credit policies in ‘making comnntments and condlmona]l obhganons as it does for on-\

balance- sheetc instruments. - CoNes ' Lo !
— - |

S At September 30, 2001 the Company had outstanding commitments to ongmate and purchase

loans andl undisbursed construction mortgages aggregating approximately $99 4 million. Fixed rate
commitments are at market rates as'of the commitment'dates and generally expire within 60 days. In-
addition, the Company was contingently liable under unfunded lines of credit for approxnnate]ly $50 2.

L N -

‘nn]lhon and standby letters of credit for apprommate]ly $93, OOO P N

Eﬁecnve Octtolber 1,/2000, the Company renéwed an employmentc agreement with the executive
in charge:ofits mortgage division which callsfor a base sa]laury of $108;000 plas bonuses based on loan
closings and net income levels. The term of this’ agreement is for two years and can be automatically
extended. Effective November 1, 1997, the Company entered intd a three year employment agreement
with the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank The agreement can be and was automatically

+ extended for -an additional year eﬁfecnve December 1, 2@00 The agreement provides fon a base salary of

~ .

\ ~
 $157, 2@@ per year. N " : . , Ny
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Greater Atlantic F inancial Corp. and Subszdaarzes o .

Notes ttcn: C@mscmﬂnda&ed] anamnaﬂ Statemems ¢

Remntal C@mmmn&mems ' R \\ - S . L , ‘ ) )
 The Compamy has emeredl into lease agreements Jfor the rental of certain propemes expzfrmg on

various dates through February 28, 20119 The future minifum rental conmutments as of September 30,

2001, for all noncanceﬂ]labﬂe lease axgreements are as Jfollllows Co

/

" Yearsending - . . .  Remal ~

* September 30, - Commitments ;
‘ g " (in thousands) -
, 2002 $ 1,303 )
2003 - . - $1,307 g |
2004 ’ ‘ L 1,332 : o
2005, - - o273 L
" 2006 A O s 7 AN
Thereafter - . .~ - 6,101 i '
Total =~ 7 T $12,623.

Net rent expense fon' the years endedl September 3@ 2001 and Septtember 30, 2@0@ was $]l
mﬂ]lhom and $1.1 million, ‘respectively. < : N

Il3 Regunﬂaft@n"y Maﬂfﬁem

Generall]ly, anmua]l dividends to shwrehoﬂdelrs are limited to the amount of current yeaur net income,
plus the total net income for the preceding two years, adjusted for any prior year distributions. Under
certain circumstances, regulatory approval would be required before making a capntaﬂl distribution. The

~

Bank dlndl not pay any- cash dividends dumng the year ended September 30, 2001. g -

’]I‘he Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 (]FD]ICI[A) creaftedl ﬁve
categories of financial institutions basedl on the adequacy of their regulatory capital level: well
capitalized, adequame}ly capitalized, umdercapmahzedl significantly undlelrcapnmhzed and critically
undercapitalized. Under FDICIA, a well-capitalized financial institution is one with Tier 1 leverage
capital of 5%, Tier | risk-based capital of 6% and total risk- based capital of 10%. At September 30, 2001
and September 30, 2000; the Bank was classified as a well capitalized financial institution.

As part of FDICIA, the minimum capital requirements that the Bank is subject to are as fo]l}ldw's
1) tangible capital equal to at least 1.5% of adjusted total assets, 2) core capital equal to at least 4% of
- adjusted total assems amdl 3) total risk-based capital equall tc at least 8% of risk-based assems ‘

Voo ~ o / ~
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‘ ‘The JfoMowmg presents the Bank’s capnta]l posmon am September 3@ 2001 and September 30,
2000: VB ~ \
: , , oL .

A ‘ - o Requmredl Requmred Actua]l ‘ Acma]l _
At September 30, 2001- . 'Balance = Percent  Balance. . Percent . . Surplus

7

( in thousands )

Tangible - < " $'5548  1.50% $20365. 551%  $ 14,817
Core ) Y $147%  400% $20365  551%  $ 5,571,
. ‘Risk-based L $M,9310\, 8.00% $21,175  11.36%  $.6,265
- - Requmredl Requmred Actual - Actual | 7
At September 30, 2000 ' Balance ' Pércent - Ba@]lancq _Percent . Surp]lusf_
- : - ‘_ - (inthousands) o~
Tangnbﬂe 0 .- $ 4442V 150% $20295 6.85%  $15853
v Core S IA T $11,845 400% $20295° 685% . $ 8450
Risk-based ' “ R $M,84]1 8.00%  $21,060 14.23% $.9,219

, ~ : a “ ~ \ Tt
BN - 4

. The following is a rrecomcﬂlnamtnon olf mhe Bamk s net worth as repomed to the OTS on GAAP capltal
. as presemtedl in the accompanymg ﬁnancna]l statemems “\

,/ S : N
S Septemb;e;t 30, SN ‘WV _ ,. _ - 2001 . _' 2000 R
o N \ o : ( SR T (in thousands) ) .
 GAAP capital SR R 821,118 $20494 ’
‘Unrealized ]losses onr avaﬂab}le for sale securities " . -~ 53] 1, 1179 N
 Goodwill : , N « 284 Q378 . o -
. Tengible capital -~ ) W . 0 20,365 20,295 -
, - Adjustments - o NN S VoS P :
Core capital T N . 20365 520295 .-
. Allowance for general loss reserves ~. - 810, 7 765 . |
 Risk:-based capital . - B . o, $21,175  $21,060 'r

- L~
Faﬂwre to meet any of fche three calpntca]l Ireqm]rememts causes savmgs msmutnons to be sub]ect to
certain regulatory restrictions and limitations including a limit on asset growth, amd the requnrement to

obtain regulatory approval before cerftam transactions or activities are emezred into!

~

3

‘14, Sﬁ@ckh@ﬂders’ Eqmm&y N . ) y i _ )
‘ - Effective November M 11998 Khe Company established the }1997/Sf£ock 0pnon and Wanram Plan
‘ (the “P]lam”) The Plan reserves opuons for 76,667 shares to employees and warrants for94,685 shares to
sﬁockholden‘s ‘The Plan was amended effective March 14, 2000, to increase the number of optnons
available for grant from 76,667 t0 225 ,000 shares to employees. The stock opuons and warrants vest
immediately upon issuance and carry a maximum term of 10 years. The éxercise price for the stock
“opuons and warrants is the fair market value at grant date. As of September 3@ 2001, 94,685 warrams ’
- .Were nssued L . o o .

LA
(I

-

N




~

: E o S X . Expiration
, O ( -~ . of Shares Price - -  Date
Balance omstandmg at September 30, }1999 C. 58 334 N _ :
Options granted N , , 17,500 . $6.00  12-1-2009 -
- Balance outstanding at September 30 2@0@ - ' 75,834 o oo,
Options granted 763,166 - $4.00 . 1212010
- Balance outstanding and exercnsab]le at September 30, 200)1 139,000 ol .

A

‘Greater Atlantic F inancial Corp. and Subsidiaries -

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements R N
. . . i \ Coo \ Va
The following summary represents the activity under the Plan:

- Number Exercise

B N ~
/ -

. A sgmmafy of the stock options -outstanding and exercisable as of Sépfcgmber 30, 2001 is as
follows: ; L e ] R

Options Outstanding ' v - Opttiohs Exercisable -
) ) - Weighted —  Weighted -~ Weighted
. \ ‘Average - Average - ‘ Average
. Exercise Number -  Remaining Life Exercise.  Number 7\. " Exercise -
Prices s Outémandﬁng o (years) ( Price Exercisable _ ‘Price ©
$7.50 - 16,667 62 ,$7.50 16,667 . -$7.50
-$8.38 41,667 .12 $8 38, - 41,667 $8.38 -
-, $6.00 - 17,500 782 . $6.00 17,500 = $6.00

$4.00 63,166 . 9.2 , ' $400 ¢ 63,166 $4.00

N b . " . -

. ~ The Compa.ny has adopted the disclosure only provisions of Statement of Financial Accoummg
Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-B ased Compensation” (“S]FAS 123™), but it continues to
measure compensation cost for the stock optmons using the intrinsic value method | prescribed by APB
Opmnom No. 25. For the years ended September 30, 2001and 2000, the fair value of stock options has
been estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions: Risk free

 interest rates of 5.25% and 6.21% for the years ended September 30, 2001and 2000, respectively, -

- expected volatility of 61% and 41% for 2001 and 2000, respectnveﬂy, dividend pay out rate of zero and an”
expected option life of ten years. Using these assumptions, the average wenghtedl fair value of the stock
opmons granted are $1.59 and $3 79 for 2001 and 2000, respectively. .

) Because the Compamy s emp]loyee stock opmons have characmemsmcs sngmﬁczmm]ly different’ ﬁrom
those of traded opuons and because chamges in the sub]ecmve input assumptions can materially affect the ..
fair value estimate, in management’s opinion, the existing models do not necessmﬂy provndle a rrehable o
smgﬂe measure of the fair value of its employee stock options. ' y . :
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_ Ifthe Company had elected to recogmze compensamon cost based on tthe value at the grant dates
“with the method pxrescnbed by.SFAS 123, net incorne ‘would have been changed to the pro forma amounts

. mdlncated below: . S L o P \ : k .

" Years ended Segteinber 3077 /, - D 2@01 - 4 A . _\,200@

: . - T ' Reported -, - Pro Forma . Reported ~ . ProForma ,
;- . " NI - e o ‘.» (dallars in thousands except per share date) -
* Net(loss) income S - 8522y 0 $(622)  $(3,638) $(3,678)
Ny N -B‘a\sic and diluted earnings, (loss) per share $ (.17 o s©2n . $Q2n o5 a2y
; Pl - B ~ = — ‘ L' = %
]15 Eammgs Per Share of C@mmwm Stmk R L '/\ ~

* The Company reports eammg per share in accordance wnth Statement of Financial Accountmg \
‘Standards No. 128, “Earnings Per Share” (“SFAS 128”). SFAS 128 requites two presentatnons of earning -
per- sha.re — “basic” and “diluted.” Basic earnings per share amcomputed by dwudmg income available to
< common stockholders (the numerator) for the period. The computation of diluted earnings per share is "
N similar to basic earnings per share, except that the denominator is increased to include the number of - .
‘ - additional common shares that would have been outstanding 1f the potentially dilitive common shares '

\had been 11ssued -~ . ;o / Lo ,
S " The numelrator m calcuﬂatcmg both basic-and diluted eammgs per share for each. penod is repomed R
net income. The denominator is based ot the foMowmg wenghted average number of common shares T
' Year ended September 30, . 2001 - 2000 . . ¢
Basic - R - 3,007,434 . 3,007434 . |
’ Diluted - - s 3,007,434 .3,007434 . . 7
.. N N e : \ - . , e P - . \
v 16 Reﬂat@d Pamty Transactmm - ' . N o

\

The Bank offers anms to its ofﬁcers “directors, empl\oyees amd re]lated pames of such persons .
‘These loans are made in the ordinary course of business and, in the opnmon of management, do not *
= involve more than the normal risk of collectibility, or presem other unfavorable features. Such ]loans ‘are
made on the same terms as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with non-affiliated -
v persons. The aggregate ballance of loans to directors, officers and other related pames is $540,000 and
g $445 ;000 as of September 30 2001 and September 30 2000 respecuvely R . B




N ‘ s
Greater Atlantic Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries o
/ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements L AT P

17, Mélrkett’/VaHun@ Disclosure of Fingncial Instruments

The fair value information for financial msftmments which is provnded below, is S based on the
requirements of Financial Accounting Standard. -Board Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial ]Imsfcmmems,” and does not represent the aggregate net

~ fairvalue of the Bmk : ‘ x -

Much of lthe mfomamom used to determine fmjr value is subjecﬁnve and Judlgmema]l in nature;
therefore, fair value estimates, especially for less marketable securities, may vary. The amounts actually \
realized or paid upon settlement or mammy could be significantly. different. : N

" The fo]lﬂowmg methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fanur vaﬂue of each class Olf

ﬁnancnaﬂ instrument for which it is reasonable to estimate that va]lue ‘ N o
A. Cash and nmerest-bemng deposits - Fair value is esrmmatced to be- camrymg value.

= B. Investmem securities - Fair value is estnmated usmg quofcedl market prices or markett estimates.

S . * C. Loans receivable - For residential momgage Jloams fair vallue is estnmated by dnscoumtmg
future cash flows using the current rate for similar loans.

o D. Deposmts For passbock savings, checking and money market accounts, fzm value is estimated
’  atcarrying value., For fixed maturity certificates of deposit, fair value is estimated by dlnscounmng future
cash flows at the cumremﬂy offered rates for deposits of similar remaining maturities. \

E. Advances from the FHLB of Atlants and reverse repurchase agreements - IFamr value is
estimated by dﬂscoummg fumre cash flows at the cumremﬂy offered Irames Ifor advances of similar remaining
' mattumnes ' ’ -
:C ‘ /

- F. @ff—bzﬂance sheet instrunents - The fair vallue of commitments is detenmned by dﬁscountmg
fufcure cash flows using the current rate for similar loans. Commitrnents to extend credit for-other types of
. Hgms and stﬂamdlby letters of credit were detemmmed by dnscoummg futwre cash flows using cumrem rates.

LR ' o ‘ : : . N

- ) . ~

e
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The camrymg value and esmmmed famr va]lue of fmancna}l nnstrumems is summarized as,foMows

September 30,

2001 . 2000 * oy
/\ ¢ _ o o o Caunrymg ]Estnmatedl Caﬁyﬁﬁg‘ ¢ Estimated .~/
SR K ‘ T - value fair value . value™  fair value " '
: N T . (inthousands) T+ o
- Asse&s ; g : o -
Cash and intérest bearmg deposits $ 3 41]18 = ,$‘ 3418 $ 5717 $§ 5717
Envestent secmmes o 17@ 417 169,951, /1136,946) 135,945
Loans receivable- / Jl79,286 182,370 138,297, 134,827
__Liabilities: - ‘ AN N
b Deposims : ~ Do 229 982 232,706 188,387 = 188,051
: \Bomrowmgs | ' ' : M? 832 . 119,075 82,836 82,738
. O]ff balance sheet mstwmems RN S Lo ‘ A N
‘ Commnftments to ’extendl credit - - 1,275 v - . 480
\Lofans'/m process . S .- - : - © 2t
, ﬂg ]Empﬁ@yee Benefit I Pﬁams RS ; SR
\ The Compzmy opemftes a 401¢k) Rememem P]lan covermg a]l]l full-time emp]loyees meetmg the
minimum age and service requirements: Conttibutions to &he Rememem Plan are at the discretion of the
Company. The Company ‘made no contributions for the years ended September 30, 200]1 and 2000.
C ]1@ Suppﬂem@m&aﬂ\ﬁash Flow Emﬁ’@rmafm@m ‘ o T o~ ‘ ‘
! - Years endea September 30, . 2001 2000
: : N L ‘ T fin thousands)
. Cash pamd during penodl for interest on deposns and bomrowmgs $ 3,344 - $ 2521
Transfer of investments to trading classification - $ - 822766 .
Transfer of loans to foreciosed assets $ N ~_ $ 281
R R | - . / ~ N . o J
/. - ; < \
- ™ N
. B \\\ ! (R B 4
™~ N \\ ’ a
/ ) {
N R —N A .
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Greater Atlantzc Financial Corp and Subszdtarzes ‘ .
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"2@ Segment Reporting ™ ‘ e »

Co The Company has two reponable segmenrcs, banking and momgage banking: The Bank operates
retail deposit branches throughout the greater Washington, D.C. /Baltimore metropolitan area. The
banking segment provides retail consumer and small businesses with deposit preducts such as-demand,
transaction, savings accounts and certificates of deposit.and lending products, such as residential and

. commercial real estate, construction and development, consumer and commercial business loans. *

,  Further, the banhng segment invests in residential Ireadl estate loans purchased from GAMC and others,
and also invests in mortgage-backed and other secumnes The mortgage banking segment activities,
which are conducted principally through GAMC, include the origination of residential real estate loans -
either for the Bank’s pomfoho or for sale into the secondary mamket with servncmg Jre]leasedl

( The accounung policies of the segments are the same as tthose described in Note L. The Company
evaluates performance based on net interest income, noninterest mcome and nommterest expense. The -
total of these three items s the repomtab]le segment’s net contribution.’

~

“The Company’s reponab]le segments are strategic business units that offer different services in.
different geographic areas. They are managed separately because each segment appeals to different -
markets and, accordingly, requires different technology and marketing strategies.

Since the Company derives a sngmﬁcam portion of its revenue from interest income and interest
expense, the segments are repomedl below using net interest income. Because the Company also evaluates
performance based on noninterest income and noninterest expense, these measures of segment ]proﬁt and

. lossare a]lso presemedl - S -
- — Total =~ - 'Jfotal
o o hﬁlortgagek Reportable = Intersegment  Operating
For the Years-Ended September 30, Banking Banking Segments  Eliminations  Earnings
Net interest income: (1) , S . (in t,houfd‘n;:gs) . -
- 2000 0 . - % 6147 $ 174 $-6321 - $ - § 6321
2000 o " 0§ 443 $ 229  § 4665 S - $ 4665
- Noninterest income: A S - ‘ - ) '
2000 . . $° 922 $ 4877~ $ 5799 - $ - (%) ./ $ 5707
2000 R 0§ (875 $ 298 $ 205 § (51 $ 2,054
/ Nonintére,st expense: R - Lo '4 o
2000 - - v s 8ms $4413. S12682 S 92§12 55@’
. 2000 . $ 6059 '$ 4949 $11,008 8 51§ 10957
» Net income: // L ' S / :
2000 ' 0§ (L160) . S 638 © 3 (522 8 - .8 (522)
2000 o8 (2093)  $ (1,545 S (3.638) § 7 S % (3638)
Segment assets: . . o ' o g . L \
“2000 © o s30Tt $16291 8387022 $(16418)  $370.604
2000 R ‘ : $3®8 227 “$ 6,368 $314,595 $(18.299) $296,296
( 1) Segment net mterest income reﬂects income after provxslon for loan losses - "
N ~ ( N ~
T 52" ) o
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' Notes to Consolidatéd Financial Statements  ~ ~ Co
21. Recent Accounting Standards . Cl T ,
’ " In July 2001, The Securities and Exchange Commis/si/on issued Staff Aﬁ:couming’BuHetm No. 102 |
¢Selected Loan Loss Allowance Methodology and Documentation Issues” (“SAB 1027). SAB 102 sets ~
“'forth guidelines for determining the allowance for loan losses under generally accepted accounting ‘
principles. In addition, SAB 102 sets forth guidelines for documentation by registrants in support of the”
“allowance for loan losses. The Company adopted SAB 102 on October 1, 2001. The Company’s banking
subsidiary has a detailed loan classification and estimated loss calculation methedology in effect, which is -
- the basis for the determination of the allowance for loan-losses. This methodelogy and related, '
documentation thereof, has been in effect since the Company. acquired the banking subsidiary in'1997.

~ The Company believes that adoption’ of SAB 102 will have no impact on the financial statements.

~ In June 2001, the FASB issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business
, Combinations” (SFAS No.:141), and No. ]142,»9‘G50dvgill and Other Intangible Assets » (SFAS No. 142).
SFAS No. 141 CHanges the accounting for business combinations, requiring that all business '
' combinations be accounted for using the purchase method and that intangible assets be recognized’as -
2N assets apart from goodwill if they arise from contractual or other legal rights, or if they are separable or
“ capable of being separated from the acquired-entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged. -

~SFAS No. 141.is effective for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 142 )
specifies that financial accounting and reporting for acquired goodwill and Other intangible assets.
_ Goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives will not be amortized but rather will be
- tested at least annuaily for impairment. SFAS No. 142 is effective for fiscal years beginning and after

7

December 15, 2001. n | . \ \' ’
: SFAS No. 142 requires that the useful lives of intangible "‘aJsset'S acquired on or before June'30, -

2001 are reassessed and the remaining amortization periods adjusted accordingly. Previously recognized

intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives shall be tested for impairment. Goodwill recognized on

-~

i

RN N
-

PN " or before June 30, 2001, shall be assigned to one “or more reporting units and shall be tested for T y
. impairment as of the beginning of the fiscal year in which SFAS'No. 142 is initially applied init’s - - .
entirety. o N v T S f,:f, | .
\ The Company will adopt SFAS 142 on October 1, 2001 and, accordingly, will discontinue . .
. amortization of the exiting goodwill. The adoption of SFAS 142 will reduce amortization expense’ )
approximately $93,000 in fiscal 2002. N N N '
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Greater Atlantic Financlal Corp.
Directors and Officers

: /
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Charles W. Calomiris
Chairman of the Board =~
Carroll'E. Amos ~ ' /
President and Chief Execunve ‘Officer
Paul J. Cinquegrana :
Principal, Washington Secuntzes Corpomnon

o -

Jeffrey M. Gitelman - T

Ovmner of Jeffrey M. Gitelman; D.D.S., P C
ﬂefﬁrey W. Ochsman
_ Partner, Friedlander, Misler, Friedlander, Sloan and
Herz, PLLC
James B. Vito
" Chairman of the Baard of James Vito, Inc P
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President and Chief Executive Oﬂ’icer
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Laurel L. Mitchell
Corporate Secretary - ‘
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Virginia M., Carter

Vice President, Information Services
Elizabeth K. Gardiner ‘
Vice President, Loan Administration
Audrey S. Guy

Vice President, Operauons .
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' PRODUCTS & SERVICES . =« \ PR \
. - /
Persongl Accounts - CoT ’ : ]Flmﬁtme ]Bamkmg Products & S@mce
o No Cpst Checking’ - - ] L o .IRASavings) @ A
. > ImelrceAs t Checking, T | o ACH Ongmatnon o U
° Premier Checking LT 10 Keogh and SEP’s ;/ ey
\ 7' o  Money Market Savings Account . e Remﬂl Re]lauonshlp Account -
N v o Premier Money Fund v _ : . ; o ‘
, |/ . e Certficates of Deposit . .. . ° © " Small Business Loans o g
-~ © 24 Hour ATM ACCGSS o 3 e Revo]lvmg Lines of Credit ~ - v
° Savmgs Accoums . - e Equnpmem IFmancnng L \
< Individual Retirement ACCOUMS (IRAS) 0 Loans for Permanent Working Capnta.]l
o  Visa Check Cards oo s ‘ PR S~
° Clredmt Cards ) .. Mortgage Leﬁmdiﬁﬁng S ‘ .
o -Safe Deposit’ Boxes (in se]lectcedl bramches) ] o Fixed Rate Loans . - X 2
v e 24 Hour Access: Line . LN o  Adjustable Rate Loans. o /
- On ]Lme Banking N N \ “ 2> o Balloon Loans ' o ‘
o BillPaymemt ' .- | _ o First Time Home Buyer, Loans
(o " QOverdraft Credit ]Pmttecmon ) - o FHA, VA Loans and VHDA
. . .. Business Accounts T . - ©, NoDocumentation Loans = )
° Smaﬂﬂ Business Checking L N \ o Ium]bo Loans . | L .
T e Business Aralysis Account, A o - -
. o Business Interest Checking‘ Sy '_,(C@mmcerrcnaﬂ Reaﬂ Estate Loans .
o Business Savings/ N N R © Acqunsmon/ Development Loans - . =
* o Business Credit Cards - - - ' BN “ o Construction Loans, Permanent Loans and
£ Money Markef Investmem Account .’ . R . Combination Construction/Permanent Loans ,
/ > Escrow Management Accoum . ' o FixedRateLoans =~ - ;T
. e Merchant Services = - - o C o Adjustable Rame Loans N
- e Commercial Sweep ,~ . = . i e Balloon Loans ' ’ X
- e Zero Balance Checking . | » , - o Flexible Amortization ]Penods on Adl]usmble
> Night Depository S . . and B\Jaﬂl}ﬂoon {LO&HS O
~ o Lock Box Services A T
o ¢ OnLine Banhng I 7 L Q@‘%@M”M‘M Lo
' o  Courier Service' -~ . o - .* o .Individuals - 0
¢  Consumer Loans- N e TN @ /Bui'ﬂders a . > |
“ , o Personal Lines of Credntc R T o~ Project Developers , - -
- o~ Home Equity Lines B L " - o
e Home Equity Loans _ . ST o L /T oo ;
. . Home ]Improvemem Loans’ o - , ' C B
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~ Bank Locations

Virginla .~
Administrative Office

250 N. Glebe Road

Arlington, VA 22203
(703) 276-2609 o
Peter Ford .

Assistant Vice Preszdent Branch Manager .

1 South Royal Avenue
Front Royal, VA 22630
(540) 6354112

Tammy L. Pee |

Assistant Vice Preszdent Branch Manager '

9484 Congress Street -

 New Market, VA 22844  ~

(540) 740-3898

* Sandra C. Turner 7

Asszstant Vice Preszdent Branch Manager

43086 Peacock Market ]Plaza

South Riding, VA 20152 ° Y
(703) 327-1700 -
Elizabeth L. Davila

Asststant Vice President, Branch Manager‘ -

46901 Ceda.r Lakes Plaza
Sterling, VA 20164 ’
(703) 421-69C0

Joseph F. ‘Laniak

. ( °
. Asszslant Vice President, Branch Manager

2800 Valley Avenuc

Winchester VA 22601

(540) 662-6900

Sabrina A, Larrick :

Assistant Vice President, Branch Manager

' Maryland

11834 Rockville Pike
Rockville, MD 20852

'(301) 881-1900

Napoleon D. Valerianoll -

“Assistant Vzce Preszdent Branch Manager

8070 Ritehje Highway
Pasadena, MD 21122

(410) 768-5308
" Patricia E. Gallagher ‘
Assistant Vice President, Branch Manager

District of Columbia ,

1025 Connecticut Avenue, N.W.
1*Floor, =~ h
Washington, D.C. 20036
(202) 296-5588 ’

" Donald L. Briggs

Assistant Vice Preszdent Branch Manager

10700 Parkridge Boulevard

 Reston, VA 20191 —~ ,
(703)391-13¢0 - .. |
Branch Offices R

A

© contact: ‘ ,

- Subsidiary
Greater Atlantic Mortgage Corp. -+
8230 Old Courthouse Road
Vienna, VA 22182 . - :
(703) 917-8300 o L ’

Other Information (S
Internet WEB Address -

. wwwgabcom ) )

KR

Corporate H-Heaaﬂqmamers
10700 lParkrldge Boulevard, Sulte PSO /
Reston, VA 20191 - S

Greater Atlantic Financial Corp.’s periodic reports; including the
Company's form 10-KSB filed with the Securities and Exchange -
Commission are available without charge to stockholders and other
interested parties. To request those publications, or if you have
questions about Greater Atlannc Financial Corp., you are mvued to

David E. Ritter : R

. Greater Atlantic Financial Corp o s

10700 Parkridge Boulevard, Suite ]P50 N
TReston, VA 20191 ‘ ‘ .
(703) 390-0344 - T

Transfer Agent and Registrar ' ~
-American Stock Transfer & Trust Company '
59 Maiden Lane " -

New York, NY 10038

www.amstock.com '

‘Communications concerning changes of address, lost certificate and -

transfer requests should be directed to the transfer agent.

. - ’ 3 . T
General Counsel ,. - L
George W. Murphy, Jr,, Esq-

Muldcon Murphy and Faucette, LLP

.5101 Wisconsin Avenue, N. w.
'Washmgton, D C 20@]16

Independent Aunﬂnft@n‘s . - ' .
BDO Seidman, LLP' - ! -
7101 Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 900 o
Bethesda, MD 20814 . N -

' Sft@ck Data

The common stock of Greater Atlantlc Financial Corp commenced -
trading on NASDAQ's National Market under the symbol *“GAFC” on
June 25, 1999. At September 30, 2001 the company had
- approximately 493 stockholders of record and 3,007,434 outstanding
+shares of common stock. The Company’s common stock had a closing
* price of $5.40 per share at September 30, 2001 During the year ended _
September 30, 2001, the stock traded at a high price of $5.75 and a
low price of $2.125. The Company has not paid a dividend on its .
common stock i .
Anmual Meeﬂmg ) ) v
_The annual -meeting of stcckholders of Greater Atlantlc Financial
Corp. will be held on Wednesday, April 10, 2002, at 10:00 a.m. at the
. Holiday Inn Tysons Corner, 1960 Chain Bndge Road, M[clLean,
\ ergxma 22102. . ] N
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Greater Atlantic

/ o L] )
Financial Corp.
10700 Packridge Boulevard

Reston, Vicginia 20191 .. .




